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Annual General Meeting 2016
All members of the Society will have the opportunity to meet Members of Council (who are Trustees
of the Royal Horticultural Society), the Director General and Leadership Team, and ask questions
on past performance and future plans at the 2016 Annual General Meeting which will be held at RHS
Garden Wisley, Surrey, at 2pm on Monday 27 June 2016. For further information about the meeting,
go to www.rhs.org.uk/AGM or contact The Secretary at the address shown below.
If you have any questions about anything contained in this Report or the accompanying Financial
Statements, please address these in the first instance to The Secretary, Royal Horticultural Society,
80 Vincent Square, London SW1P 2PE, telephone: 020 7821 3034, email: agm@rhs.org.uk.
We also welcome your suggestions upon how the Report can be improved in future years, and invite
you to join us at this year’s AGM.
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President’s Introduction: Review of 2015/16
As President over the past 3 years, I am very fortunate to have been part of a Society that has
ambitious plans for the future, but at the same time ensures that the underlying RHS business and
Charitable objectives are being delivered. As we move from the planning to the implementation of
these projects, we, the Council of the RHS, are very conscious of our fiduciary responsibilities.
I am glad to be able to report that 2015/16 has been very busy, successful and during the year has
reached a series of significant milestones. We celebrated the 25th anniversary of Hampton Court
Palace Flower Show and record numbers of members. We launched the RHS Vision, with our
colleagues in the horticulture industry, and have made great strides with the Ornamental Horticulture
Roundtable group. As you see from the Treasurer’s Report, the financial results have been very
pleasing over the period.
One of the problems hitherto with British horticulture has been its disparate nature, with no
consistency of approach amongst the various horticultural bodies. This has led to little political
influence. As an industry worth £10 billion to the UK economy a single voice is vital for all the Sectors
which make up that industry to enable them to have some political clout. The Government Minister
George Eustice MP has reaffirmed his commitment of support for the five-year Ornamental
Horticulture Roundtable Action Plan. I’m delighted to say that our Director General, Sue Biggs, chairs
that Group and ‘things’ are most definitely happening!
At the launch of the 5-year strategy in Parliament, we also heard from our youngest RHS
Ambassador, 10-year old former RHS Young School Gardener of the Year George Hassel. His
infectious passion about horticulture was repeated when he spoke at the launch of the RHS Vision,
alongside RHS Vice President and Founding Ambassador Alan Titchmarsh.
At that event, the Society set out an ambitious, but eminently achievable plan to enrich lives by
ensuring that everyone has access to the many wellbeing, social and environmental benefits that
gardening brings. The RHS is nothing if not brave, and that most commendable of traits was very
much in evidence last year, as we shook off the restrictions of Earth and set our sights on the
challenges of space. In a move that must rank among the boldest the Charity has ever undertaken,
we joined forces with the European Space Agency and British astronaut Major Tim Peake to launch
a project that will see tens of thousands of school children become space biologists.
Called Rocket Science, the project will see schools planting rocket seeds, which have been in zero
gravity on the International Space Station (ISS), alongside seeds that have remained on Earth. The
aim of the experiment is to provide insights into the challenges of growing food in space and inspire
the next generation of plant scientists. In a special message delivered while orbiting the Earth at
more than 17,000 mph, Major Peake urged schools across the country to join the RHS’ project and
learn more about the wonders of horticulture.
Last year, we welcomed 1.9 million visitors to our Gardens, a tremendous and satisfying increase
on the previous year. There is no doubt that our Gardens under the watchful eye of our talented
teams are providing more and more interest for our members and general public. Our staff, with their
dedication and imagination are appreciated enormously by the public. That also may have
contributed to the increase in the number of members from 428,472 to 448,977 this year. At a time
when many charitable institutions are finding it difficult to maintain, let alone increase membership,
this result is a great fillip for all staff and the Leadership Team, led so ably by Sue Biggs.
In view of our confidence regarding the future, one new event highlights our ambition. That is the
announcement that the RHS is to hold a major new flower show in the splendid surroundings of
Chatsworth House in Derbyshire in June 2017. This show will have a distinctive Derbyshire feel, set
as it is in the 1,000 acre park.
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There is no doubt that 2016 will provide challenges that will test our creativity, determination and
will to succeed, but I am immensely proud to say that the RHS has talented people who will, I’m
sure, rise to this task and deliver another year of impressive performance.
Sir Nicholas Bacon
President
Date: 23 May 2016
Sir Nicholas Bacon
President
Date: 23 May 2016
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Director General’s Introduction: Looking to the Future
It’s no overstatement to say that I feel incredibly privileged to be Director General of the RHS at what
must be one of the most exciting periods in the Society’s 212-year history. Over the coming year we
will be driving forward a series of developments that will help to ensure that the RHS and its
horticultural message reaches more people, drives greater change to more lives, and inspires both
current and future generations to get gardening and appreciate the power and beauty of plants.
We announced our Vision in 2016 to enrich everyone’s life through plants and make the UK a greener
and more beautiful place. The investment of £160 million into the future of horticulture and science
is now well under way.
As part of that investment we’ll be improving the experience for our members, visitors and colleagues
at all our gardens; indeed, you may already have noticed that improvement work is underway. This
work is necessary to ensure that more people have access to our gardens and the many benefits
they bring. But such massive undertakings will inevitably cause some inconvenience, and so I’d like
to take this opportunity to thank you for your patience and continued support for the RHS as we
complete this vital and thrilling work.
The incredibly exciting announcement that we are to create a new garden, the Charity’s fifth, in
Salford, Greater Manchester, is a major achievement for the Society and work will progress at pace
throughout this year.
RHS Garden Bridgewater, which is due to open in 2019, covers 154 acres and will revive the lost
historic grounds of Worsley New Hall in Salford. With such an important site it is crucial that we
recruit the right expert to lead the development of the garden, and I believe we have done just that,
with the appointment of one of the world’s leading landscape architects, Tom Stuart-Smith.
Tom’s appointment is a real coup for the RHS and underlines our determination to create a truly
innovative and compelling garden to showcase world-class horticulture. Tom, who has created eight
Gold medal winning gardens at the Chelsea Flower Show, will create the overall master plan for the
new garden.
Major works will also commence in autumn of this year to begin a three year programme at RHS
Garden Wisley to provide new world class horticultural science research facilities, improved visitor
facilities and new garden areas, all befitting our flagship garden. Our Gardens at Hyde Hall in Essex,
Rosemoor in Devon, and Harlow Carr in Yorkshire will also all benefit from investments made from
our Strategic Investment Programme, and we will keep members informed of the exciting progress
being made in The Garden magazine, and online at www.rhs.org.uk. We will be funding three
quarters of this Programme but that still leaves us a challenging fundraising target of £40m if we are
going to be able to deliver this plan for so many people, plants and the environment – but together
I’m sure we’ll achieve it.
Last year I told you about a survey that showed that more than 90% of us in the UK say that simply
looking at a garden lifts our mood. Well, in 2016 we’ll be working with top universities, doctors,
politicians and health policy-makers to develop robust, scientific evidence to confirm what many of
us instinctively know, that gardening and being surrounded by nature really does improve health and
wellbeing.
The RHS Garden at the Chelsea Flower Show will represent the links between Health, Happiness
and Horticulture as part of our Greening Grey Britain campaign. There will also be a Front Garden
Summit at the show this year that will aim to find solutions with ministers, developers, gardeners and
landscapers to the problem of grey front gardens.
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And as part of the energetic Ornamental Horticulture Roundtable group, the first Health and
Horticulture Forum will take place at the RHS Hampton Court Palace Flower Show in July. The
Forum will build on the increasing body of scientific evidence that shows that the natural environment
has an important role to play when addressing major health and wellbeing issues such as obesity,
dementia and diabetes.
While the RHS is constantly striving to break new ground in order to increase our understanding of
horticulture, and to share that new knowledge with greater numbers of people, some aspects of the
RHS are reassuringly constant. One such constant is the close relationship between Her Majesty
The Queen and the RHS Chelsea Flower Show.
In 2016 the RHS Chelsea Flower Show will celebrate that close relationship and mark Her Majesty’s
90th birthday by creating stunning floral arches in her honour to welcome visitors to the show. We’ll
also be staging a special photographic exhibition that charts her numerous visits to the show over
the past decades.
It’s fitting that, in a year that will see the RHS venture into uncharted waters in order to take our
horticultural message to new audiences, we also celebrate the traditions, principles and people that
have made the RHS the world’s leading gardening Charity.
Thank you for your continuing support, and especially to our Fellows and the hundreds of volunteers
without whom, we simply could not operate.

Sue Biggs
Director General
Date: 23 May 2016
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Activities in 2015/16: What the RHS does
The following is a summary of the Society’s principal activities and shows how we provide benefit
both to our members and the wider public.
Gardens
We have four renowned Gardens; RHS Garden Harlow Carr in North Yorkshire, RHS Garden Hyde
Hall in Essex, RHS Garden Rosemoor in Devon and our flagship garden, RHS Garden Wisley in
Surrey. Here we provide gardeners across the UK with access to diverse plant collections, innovative
and attractive planting design and the highest horticultural standards and practices. Our Gardens
hold Plant Trials to judge plant performance, and those considered to perform particularly well earn
the RHS Award of Garden Merit so gardeners can identify plants that will thrive in most garden
situations. Plants that are particularly good for pollinating insects (so vital for a healthy, sustainable
environment) are identified by the RHS Perfect for Pollinators logo.
In 2015/16, we welcomed 1.9 million visitors to our Gardens – a 7.3% increase on the previous year.
Shows
We are responsible for organising inspirational Flower Shows at Chelsea in central London,
Hampton Court Palace in Surrey and Tatton Park in Cheshire, as well as seasonal shows in RHS
Garden Wisley in Surrey and RHS Garden Hyde Hall in Essex. We have an established programme
of shows at our Horticultural Halls in London and shows held in partnership include the RHS Flower
Show Cardiff (with Cardiff Council), the RHS Malvern Spring Festival and Malvern Autumn Show
(with the Three Counties Agricultural Society) and, for the last time, the RHS Flower Show
Birmingham at BBC Gardeners’ World Live (with River Street Events). We also collaborate with
groups and societies to deliver specialist shows at our Gardens and Horticultural Halls in London,
and host a series of shows at the Horticultural Halls. We have also introduced a series of RHS On
Tour to visit some London Farmers Markets to sell plants and give helpful advice.
Collections
The Herbarium at Wisley holds an internationally important collection of dried and pressed plant
specimens of cultivated ornamental plants. It is the largest herbarium dedicated to the conservation
of ornamental plants in the UK.
The history and art of horticulture is centred in the RHS Lindley Library which holds a renowned
collection of botanical art, a rich archive and an extensive collection of photographs covering all
aspects of gardening. The collections – more than 30,000 works of art and 80,000 titles (the oldest
dating to 1514) – provide an unmatched reference for the influences and knowledge that underpin
our perspective on horticulture and are used by gardeners, scholars, garden writers, journalists,
members and the public from the UK and overseas. The Library at Vincent Square in central London
and its branches in each of the RHS Gardens are open most days of the week, offer lending facilities
to members and free access to everyone.
In the adjacent Lindley Hall and at our four Gardens, art exhibitions and talks are held for the benefit
of our members and the wider public.
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Media
The RHS shares its knowledge online through our website and social media streams and in print.
Our website (www.rhs.org.uk), attracted more than17 million unique users, a 17% increase in traffic
year on year.
We also publish a monthly magazine, The Garden, as well as The Plantsman, The Orchid Review,
Hanburyana and a host of horticultural books to keep our members and the public informed about
the latest skills, design and practice of horticulture.
Science
RHS Science is the recognised centre of excellence for independent horticultural science and advice.
In October 2015 we introduced the RHS Science Strategy 2015-2019 so we can equip people with
the knowledge they need to successfully garden in the future. Our strategy is based on four key
themes: A global knowledge bank for gardening and garden plants; Plant health in gardens;
Gardening in a changing world; Plant science for all: people, plants, planet.
Our scientists are committed to helping gardeners improve and develop their horticultural skills, as
well as identifying and promoting solutions to major issues. We carry out scientific research into
plants, their physiology, cultivation, identification, the pests and diseases affecting them and the role
they play in our environment. We also provide evidence-based horticultural advice to our members
and the wider public via our website, through lectures and seminars, and by leading the debate on
issues influencing horticulture and gardening.
Education
We aim to share practical knowledge and to inspire those of all ages and abilities with an interest in
plants and gardening.
We provide a ‘ladder of qualifications’, from the RHS Level 1 Certificate (accessible to amateurs and
a first step in vocational training for professional horticulturists), through to the prestigious Master of
Horticulture (RHS), a degree-level qualification. The RHS is an Awarding body recognised by the
Office of Qualifications and Examination Regulations, ensuring accessibility to RHS qualifications
through colleges and other partners. Within our own Gardens we offer practical training schemes for
students through the RHS School of Horticulture, RHS apprenticeships and National Gardening
Scheme apprenticeships.
Our Campaign for School Gardening encourages children at primary and secondary level to become
involved in gardening and, for adults, we organise lectures, courses and workshops in our Gardens
and around the country.
We also offer a number of bursary funds to support plant research, expeditions, study tours and
conference attendances around the world.
Retail
We offer excellent shopping opportunities for members and visitors in our four Gardens and at our
Flower Shows. Sales are generated through our plant centres, gift shops and bookshops, with RHS
Garden Wisley offering the best selection of horticultural books in the UK. Sales through our online
facility are rapidly increasing. We earn further income for our charitable purposes from licensing the
use of images from our library.
Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262
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Outreach
We are the national organising body for the Britain in Bloom and It’s Your Neighbourhood community
gardening movement working in partnership with 18 regional and national ‘Bloom’ bodies. RHS
Britain in Bloom promotes environmental and horticultural good practice in local communities and
enables the RHS to support gardeners throughout the UK at a local level. We link to schools and
other groups such as Affiliated Societies (including gardening clubs) to expand our outreach and
increase the national and international network of gardeners, and encourage gardening in prisons
through our Windlesham Trophy award.
How we ensure access for all
We aim to ensure that anyone with an interest in horticulture and gardening can benefit from our
work and we do sometimes need to make a charge for access to our services and work. We try to
ensure that as many people as possible benefit, whatever their means. In particular, we provide free
access to an extensive knowledge base through our website and libraries; offer free open days and
facilitate educational visits at all our Gardens; award bursaries for horticultural study; make available
the benefit of our Plant Trials programme to the public and horticultural industry through our Award
of Garden Merit and Perfect for Pollinators schemes; and support community gardening initiatives
through the RHS Campaign for School Gardening, RHS Britain in Bloom and the affiliation of local
horticultural societies. We also ensure that there is extensive coverage of our Shows on free-to-air
television, radio, various websites and social media.
We are grateful to our generous donors and those who leave us legacies – without their kind
donations we could not undertake all the work we do. We rely on the welcome support of our
members (more than 452,000 at the time of going to press) to deliver our charitable purpose and we
provide them with access to a range of services and activities such as free entry for themselves and
a member of their family to our Gardens and nearly 200 Partner Gardens (free entry for RHS
members at selected times); reduced admission prices to our Shows; a monthly magazine; additional
gardeners’ advisory services; and the knowledge that their membership has helped enable us to
undertake much of our scientific, educational, art and outreach work. We place no restrictions on
membership and endeavour to keep membership subscriptions at an affordable level.
The Trustees confirm they have complied with the duty in section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to
have regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit.
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Objectives, Achievements and Developments
The RHS was founded in 1804, and our core objective is to be the world’s leading gardening
Charity by inspiring passion and excellence in the science, art and practice of horticulture. In
2014 we were delighted to introduce the RHS Vision, our 10-year Strategic Investment
Programme of £160 million to enable us to provide even better inspiration and advice for more
people and help secure and improve the future of horticulture. In everything we do, we will aim
to use our Guiding Principles, which are to: Inspire. Involve. Inform. Improve.
Our Strategic Objectives for 2015/16
Our key achievements against our Strategic Objectives are summarised on the following pages.
1. To be known, loved and trusted as the Charity for all gardeners. We believe the pleasure
and benefits of gardening should be available for everyone.
• We welcomed 1.9m million visitors to our gardens – a 7.3% increase on 2014/15.
• Our website attracted an average 1.49 million unique visitors every month (an increase of
17% on the previous year). Our “friends” on Facebook increased to 142,330 and we now have
98,615 followers on Twitter, 146,256 on Pinterest and 12,137 on Instagram.
• We organised our fourth National Gardening Week from 13–19 April 2015, an event supported
at our four Gardens, private and public gardens, and by garden centres and nurseries across
the UK. It provided the opportunity for us to launch our Greening Grey Britain campaign to use
horticulture to transform unloved spaces.
2. To safeguard and advance the science, art and practice of horticulture for the benefit of
future generations and the environment. Who will protect the nation’s individual gardens
and plants if we don’t?
• We published RHS Vision to show how we will enrich everyone’s lives through horticulture.
• Our bursaries scheme provided financial support for a range of horticultural projects including
overseas expeditions, study tours, conference attendance and work placements at botanic
and historic gardens around the world. A combined total of just above £120,000 for 93
bursaries were awarded to professional and student horticulturists to broaden their skills,
knowledge, and experience.
• Together with Defra and industry partners we produced the Ornamental Horticulture Round
Table Action Plan 2015–2020. It identified 12 points which, with Government help, will
increase the growth and competitiveness of UK horticulture. It was launched at the RHS
Chelsea Flower Show 2015.
• We began the Restore a Book appeal to safeguard some of the horticultural treasures in our
RHS Lindley Library.
3. To transform communities through gardening. We want to make the UK a better, greener
and more beautiful place.
• Our Campaign for School Gardening now has 24,555 schools, which equates to more than 5
million UK children now involved in gardening at school. We also trained 758 teachers in 2015
through our extensive and varied teacher-training programme. The campaign’s new website
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was launched to encourage horticulture in more schools.
• The RHS Britain in Bloom campaign for 2015 was launched at Cody Dock in Newham, London
with the theme of Greener Streets: Better Lives, a key part of our Greening Grey Britain
campaign. A new category, Business Improvement District, was introduced.
• 1,626 ‘Bloom’ groups were involved and 2,084 more local groups took on the It’s Your
Neighbourhood challenge. More than 300,000 volunteers across the country invested some
11.7 million hours.
• Working with the National Gardens Scheme, we continued to administer the annual Elspeth
Thompson Bursary. This provides financial assistance to amateur gardeners within
community groups in England and Wales, to enable them to create a garden or horticulturebased project for the benefit of the community, or to enable them to acquire horticultural
knowledge and skills.
4. To create world-leading horticulture that inspires people to garden. We want to delight
our visitors with the wonder of gardening and inspire people to grow.
• Our successful and acclaimed Flower Shows continue to attract hundreds of thousands of
gardeners. We welcomed 165,000 people to the RHS Chelsea Flower Show, 141,000 to the
RHS Hampton Court Palace Flower Show, 67,000 to the RHS Flower Show Tatton Park,
26,000 visitors to the RHS Flower Show Cardiff, and 57,000 visitors to the RHS Malvern Spring
Festival which is a joint venture with Three Counties Agricultural Society. We also announced
the addition of a new flower show at Chatsworth House, Derbyshire, which will take place for
the first time in June 2017.
• As part of our Strategic Investment Programme, we announced that our fifth garden will be at
Worsley New Hall in Salford, Greater Manchester and will be known as RHS Garden
Bridgewater. This will open in 2019 and bring the best in horticulture to millions more people
in the North West.
• Planning for a new science centre at RHS Garden Wisley and for its new-look front of house
and retail space is under way. Landscape designers for this and for RHS Garden Bridgewater
have been announced.
5. To nurture and grow our membership throughout the UK. We want to be open, relevant
and indispensable to all gardeners so that increasing numbers want to join us.
• At the end of the financial year, we had 448,977 members, a record high and a net increase
of 20,505 members on the previous year. In the year 81,946 members joined the Society. Our
retention rate of existing members was 85.58%, 0.38% higher than the previous year.
• The number of Fellows, our top membership tier and another important source of support,
reached 136.
6. To provide a voice for all gardeners. Our aim is to be the trusted voice of authority for the
many and the few.
• We meet regularly with Affiliated Societies, their specialist panels and plant committees and
aim to improve the service we give to gardeners with specialist interests.
• Our Plant Trials and Relations team worked closely with the gardening trade to explore ways
for the Award of Garden Merit to appear more frequently at points of sale. We continue to work
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closely with organisations such as the Horticultural Trades Association to help ensure that the
Award of Garden Merit and Perfect for Pollinators logos are used to maximum benefit.
• Through Horticulture Matters and other trade collaborations, we continue to work together to
build a united front to Government, for example, when needed for the benefit of gardeners.
7. To share and build expert knowledge. Anything anyone from beginners to experts ever
wanted to know about horticulture and gardening.
• Our Gardening Advice Service handled a record 91,171 gardening enquiries, ranging from
pest and disease identification to the best ways of growing individual plants, with another
59.5m separate views of our advice and plant pages online.
• Our fortnightly series of RHS Podcasts receive more than 200,000 downloads per month.
There have now been more than 2 million listens. We continued our relationship with British
Airways to provide podcasts every quarter for those on BA long-haul flights to and from the
UK.
8. To delight our customers with exceptional service and products. We will put our
customers at the heart of everything we do throughout our organisation, improving their
experience at every opportunity.
• We are improving the orientation and interpretation signage across all of our Gardens. This
project aims to enhance visitors’ enjoyment by improving way-marking and introducing
discreet interpretation panels designed to increase understanding of, for example, how and
why our Curators have developed the plantings in the gardens.
• We are improving our website and its plant search facility (“Find a plant”) allowing visitors to
purchase directly plants from the widest choice, thereby supporting UK producers.
• Through our Gardening Advice Service, online and by phone, we ensure the best advice
available.
9. To be a great place to work where everyone makes a difference. We want the RHS to be
an enjoyable place to work where everyone knows they make a difference and play their part
in creating an exciting future together.
• We recognise long service of people who have been with us between five and 40 years. In
2015 we gave 76 long-service awards. This included one for 30 years and one for 45 years.
• We undertook our second employee engagement survey with Best Companies and were
pleased to achieve a 5% improvement in our overall level of employee engagement combined
with an increase in response rate to the survey. We are now a ‘One to Watch’ with Best
Companies.
• We hosted our now Annual Volunteers Day to thank our 300,000 volunteers for their valuable
contributions.
10. To have efficient business practices that deliver maximum income for our charitable
purpose. We constantly strive to improve and ensure an effective, stable infrastructure.
• We are continuing with the development of a new Customer Relationship Management system
in-house; this will provide a comprehensive understanding of our members’ and other
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customers’ interactions with us, thereby enabling us to provide them with a more targeted and
satisfying personal service.
• The Internal Audit Team develops an annual risk-based audit plan and its reviews continue to
lead to improved procedural efficiencies across the Society. Internal Audit focuses on adding
value and strengthening our internal control framework.
• Secretariat and Finance continue to conduct detailed reviews of our high-value contracts,
providing us with assurance that the Society is adequately protected when entering into new
commercial agreements.
The Year Ahead

Our Strategic Investment Programme, first outlined in 2012, remains a major focus. We believe
the Key Investment Projects contained within the programme will change perceptions of us and
deliver significant improvements for the benefit of our members, the public and horticulture. We
will increase our income by improved performance and also by the much-appreciated donations
of our supporters so we can fund our charitable projects to make a world of difference to people
and horticulture.
We firmly believe that through our work, including the Strategic Investment Programme, we will,
in the years ahead, deliver more benefits to an increasingly broad range of people of different
ages, backgrounds and skill levels throughout Britain.
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Financial Review by the Treasurer
Results for Financial Year 01 February 2015 – 31 January 2016
The year ended 31 January 2016 has again been financially successful for the Society, generating
a very satisfactory net surplus before gains on investments of £5.3m and exceeding our budget once
again. Income increased by 4.7% to a record £76.5m whilst during the year the expenditure on our
Strategic Investment Programme started in earnest.
Membership of the Society continued to expand, and grew to a record 448,977 (2014/15: 428,472),
an increase of 4.8% over the previous year’s record membership. Since 2010/11, our membership
has steadily increased by over 86,000, an increase of 24% over the period:
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New events in the Gardens and favourable weather during the year resulted in visitor volumes to the
Society’s Shows and Gardens achieving substantial growth, with record visitor attendances at all
four Gardens. Our combined garden visitors for the year were just short of 1.9 million with Wisley
achieving almost 1.1m visitors for the first time.
Since 2010/11, visitor volumes at our four Gardens have increased by 423k, (29%), with Harlow Carr
achieving growth of 37% and Hyde Hall delivering a massive 74%:
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In 2013/14, the RHS developed a £100m, 10 year Strategic Investment Programme and during
2015/16 this total was revised upwards to £160m; this increase is due primarily to the investment
requirement in creating our 5th Garden, RHS Bridgewater, the site for which was secured during the
year. These long term projects are now well under way with the major property projects on schedule
for planning permission submissions in 2016. The potential for these projects is huge and they will
underpin our ability to achieve the ambitious charitable aims that the Society is striving for in the
coming years. The Charity is investing a substantial part of its reserves and anticipated future net
income into this inspirational long term undertaking, as well as seeking to raise in excess of £40m
from fundraising. During the 10 years of this programme, it will be necessary to designate further
elements of the Society’s reserves to the Strategic Investment Programme Fund (currently £47.7m),
in order to ensure sufficient funds are available to complete this challenging programme.
The key contributors to our net income are explained below and further details are available in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities on page 31.
Income
The Society generated total income of £76.5m, compared to £73.1m in 2014/15, an increase of
4.7%. A breakdown of this year’s income by major area is shown below:

Breakdown of income by major area

Donations and
Legacies
£6.9m (9%)

Sponsorship
£2.0m (3%)

Other
£1.8m (2%)

Trading
£23.3m (30%)

Gardens
£6.0m (8%)

Shows
£18.2m (24%)

Members and
Marketing
£18.3m (24%)

Trading income includes retail operations from all four RHS Gardens, events income from gala nights
at the Chelsea and Hampton Court Palace Flower Shows and income from publications such as The
Garden, at £23.3m (2014/15: £21.9m). It represents 30% of the total income of the Society and was
£1.4m (6.3%) higher than in 2014/15. Within this area, retail income continued to grow on the back
of increased visitor numbers to the Society’s Gardens together with significant growth in online plant
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sales. Income from ticket sales for the popular gala events at Chelsea and Hampton Court Palace
continued to increase, with 10,773 tickets sold.
Income from the Members and Marketing division, at £18.3m (2014/15: £16.5m), is higher than last
year by £1.8m (11.1%), and represents 24% of the total income of the Society; this continues to be
a major source of funds to re-invest in our charitable projects. Membership numbers increased to
yet another new record of 448,977 members by year-end, driving membership income up in the year
by £2.1m.
RHS Shows income increased to £18.2m (2014/15: £17.5m), up £0.7m, (4%), representing 24% of
the Society’s income. The Chelsea Flower Show was once again a sell-out, with 165,000 visitors.
RHS Hampton Court Palace and Tatton Park Flower Shows were again very well attended with
140,000 and 70,000 visitors respectfully.
RHS Gardens income, which includes gate receipts and catering but excludes income from retail
operations, reached an impressive £6.0m (2014/15: £5.5m), up £0.5m (9%) over 2014/15. Garden
visitor numbers grew by 130k (7.4%) to 1.9m. RHS Garden Hyde Hall had its best ever year, with
visitor volumes increasing by 12% to 244k (2014/15: 217k). Catering customers at the Gardens
continued to increase overall.
Although lower than last year, receipts from legacies and donations, at £6.9m (2014/15: £7.4m) are
still strong. This is a much appreciated, but always unpredictable income stream, and legacies
remain critical in enabling the Society to pursue its charitable aims.
“Other” income includes Horticulture where income increased to £317k (2014/15: £267k) from a oneoff international trials conference held in London, and investment income at £842k, down £247k
against last year.
Expenditure
Total expenditure in the year was £71.1m (2014/15: £65.6m), an increase of £5.5m (8.3%) after
spending £2.2m on Key Investment Projects within the Strategic Investment Programme. A
breakdown of this year’s expenditure by major area is shown below:
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Breakdown of expenditure by major area
Communities and
Education
£3.3m (5%)
Horticulture
£1.2m (2%)
Science and
Collections
£4.6m (6%)

Donations and
Legacies
£1.3m (2%)

Sponsorship
£0.4m (0%)

RHS Gardens
£20.1m (28%)

Members and
Marketing
£7.0m (10%)
Shows
£15.7m (22%)

Trading
£17.7m (25%)

Trading expenses of £17.7m are £2.0m higher than in 2014/15, an increase of 12.9% on prior year
and commensurate with our growing retail sales volumes. Chelsea and Hampton Court gala costs
also increased in the year as we continue to deliver a world class experience in a competitive events
market.
Members and Marketing continued to focus its efforts and expenditure on supporting the growth in,
and providing excellent service to, our membership.
Shows expenditure has been kept in check in 2015/16 except for the expected increase in show
ground rental which contributes to the 4.5% (£0.7m) increase on the previous year.
RHS Gardens had a total expenditure of £20.1m in 2015/16, up £2.2m or 12% on 2014/15. Whilst
headcount across the gardens increased slightly, the largest contributors to increased costs came
from the introduction of our Hort Matters initiative and the accelerated depreciation on several
properties at Wisley which have shortened lives as a consequence of the Wisley redevelopment.
During the year, 4 additional horticultural apprentices were recruited into the Society as part of the
Horticulture Matters campaign, making a total of 16 apprentices by the year-end.
Science and Collections expenditure of £4.6m in 2015/16 is £2.0m higher than prior year. During the
year, the Libraries and Collections teams were transferred to the Science division from Members
and Marketing division to better align and reflect the RHS’s scientific heritage. We have also
increased staffing in science as part of our ongoing commitment to horticultural science as well as
introducing a new pay structure, thereby recognising and rewarding the talent which will ensure the
future of great scientists within the RHS.
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Horticulture expenditure has seen similar impacts on staff costs from the introduction of the
Horticulture Matters campaign to make horticulture a career to be proud of.
The Society’s Strategic Investment Programme increased its expenditure in 2015/16, with £2.2m
being invested as revenue expenditure (in addition to the capital expenditure of £1.5m discussed
below). Progress is being made at all the major garden projects, with planning permission
submissions for Wisley, Hyde Hall, Harlow Carr and Rosemoor as well as for our new garden RHS
Bridgewater, all expected during the first half of 2016. Operational expenditure on IT, Communities,
Education and Outreach continues to be an important part of our “business as usual”.
Fixed Asset Investments
At the year-end, the Society held Fixed Asset Investments valued at £90.8m (2014/15: £77.5m) as
set out in Note 8. The Investments Committee oversees the Society’s investments and is responsible
for the review of the Society’s investment performance.
Endowments gifted to the Society of £4.5m form a part of the Fixed Asset Investments. The Society’s
endowed investments are managed on a total return basis. Council agreed from 2013/14 to withdraw
3.5% each year from the endowment, based on the previous year’s 3rd quarter closing endowment
value. In accordance with this policy, Council transferred £132k from the endowment to restricted
funds for spending in the year. In funds where these balances have not been fully expended, the
unspent balances are carried forward for spending in future periods.
Over the three years to 31 January 2016, the endowed portfolio produced total returns of 4.9% per
year. This is in line with the Charity’s target return of RPI (1.3%) plus 3.5% per annum. Council will
continue to review the level of annual withdrawal to ensure that an appropriate balance of the needs
and interests of current and future beneficiaries of the Society’s activities is maintained.
The Society’s policy is to invest Designated Funds which have been established for specific uses
and where the expenditure is expected to be made within a five year period (for example, under the
Strategic Investment Programme), in cash and liquid fixed income securities, allowing it to make
annual withdrawal of funds to support expenditure towards its charitable objectives. The target return
on the cash and liquid fixed income securities is “cash plus” (i.e. to exceed the return on cash). For
Designated Funds which are expected to have an investment period of more than five years, the
Society’s overall investment objective is to preserve capital and to achieve positive real returns in
excess of inflation.
The Society’s cash and liquid fixed income securities are invested in two funds; the CCLA Investment
Managers Limited Charities Official Investment Fund (COIF) Charities Deposit Fund and the Royal
London Asset Management (RLAM) Cash Plus Fund. During the year the Society disinvested its
holdings in the RLAM Sterling Credit Fund. Over the year, the Charities Deposit Fund, which is a
cash fund only, has essentially met its target return of the average LIBID rate over the period, which
was 0.53%. The RLAM funds, which are invested in both cash and liquid fixed income securities,
have returned an average of 1.5% for the year, being 1.0% ahead of the “cash plus” measurement.
The remaining non-endowed investments within designated funds have generated a 4.5% per year
return over the three years to 31 January 2016. This is 2.8% above the Society’s target of achieving
a positive real return in excess of inflation.
The Society’s investments are held in funds across four investment managers to diversify the
investment risk. During the year, the Society transferred £13m of cash held in the National
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Westminster Bank Plc to RLAM, with £9.8m being invested in the Royal London Cash Plus Fund
and £4.2m into the Royal London Sterling Credit Fund (since transferred to the Royal London Cash
Plus Fund). The Society’s holdings in pooled investment vehicles managed by Troy Asset
Management Limited and Veritas Asset Management LLP were maintained unchanged.
In view of the scale of the expenditure expected in the next 5 years under the Strategic Investment
Programme, Council has resolved that it is prudent to manage the phasing of this project expenditure
such that the balance of Fixed Asset Investments is maintained at a level which exceeds by at least
£15m the sum of the Reserve Policy Fund, the endowed and restricted funds and funds sufficient to
eliminate the pension deficit. Council will keep this policy under review as the Strategic Investment
Programme evolves.
Reserves
In line with the Charity Commission guidance that a Charity should maintain adequate reserves to
ensure its ability to deliver its charitable objectives, the Society holds unrestricted reserves for a
number of purposes which are set out in Note 20a to the financial statements. These reserves,
which are reviewed annually by Council, are summarised as follows:
•
•

•

•

Fixed Asset Funds totalling £53.5m (including the Bicentenary Glasshouse Fund) representing
the amount invested in the net book value of unrestricted fixed assets.
Reserve Policy Fund of £7.5m. Having reviewed the risks to the Society, and the challenges to
and calls upon its finances, Council considers it appropriate and prudent, in the context of the
Society’s commitments, to maintain the fund at this level, which is equivalent to approximately 2
months of the Society’s charitable expenditure.
Strategic Investment Programme Funds of £47.7m representing the funding support which has
been specifically designated to date for the on-going Key Investment Projects within the Strategic
Investment Programme for capital and revenue projects which have been grouped into three
projects; Existing Gardens, 5th Garden and Community Outreach. Over time, the execution of
the Strategic Investment Programme will lead to further elements of the Society’s reserves being
similarly designated. It is envisaged that this investment programme will take a minimum of ten
years to complete, commencing from 2013/14. The capitalisation of this major capital programme
will lead to annual transfers between this fund and the Fixed Asset Fund.
Wisley Development Fund of £240k, being the remainder of the fund established to improve the
infrastructure and enable refurbishment of Society-owned properties in Wisley Village.

The balance on unrestricted reserves, after the above designations (which includes the Reserve
Policy Fund), is held in General and Trading Funds of £15.7m to provide working capital for the
Society and its trading subsidiaries (RHS Enterprises Ltd and RHS Special Events Ltd).
Pensions
The consolidated and Society balance sheets include the pension net liability on the 1974 Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme of £5.0m as at 31 January 2016 (2014/15: £6.6m). The deficit is disclosed
for FRS102 purposes, valuing the Scheme’s liabilities based on actuarial assumptions and assets at
market rates as at the financial year-end.
The defined benefit pension scheme was closed to future service accruals in May 2009. Whilst the
closure of the scheme helps to minimise the Charity’s exposure, the Society will remain subject to
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future volatility in the pension scheme’s liabilities as a result of changing actuarial variables. We will
continue to seek and evaluate opportunities to reduce the pension scheme net liability.
Capital Expenditure and Disposals
In 2015/16, capital expenditure amounted to £2.6m (2014/15: £2.5m). Of this, £1.5m related to the
Strategic Investment Programme which forms part of our landmark £160m investment in the future
of horticulture by 2023/24. Expenditure has been made on master planning, architects’ and
consultants’ fees as we prepare for planning applications in the first half of 2016.
Amongst the larger capital additions at our gardens are a new Harlow Carr car park (£0.6m) and
new substation at Harlow Carr (£0.2m). The balance of capital additions represents smaller projects
and necessary items of investment in plant, equipment and infrastructure.
There were no sales of fixed assets in the year. Costs and equivalent accumulated depreciation of
£411k were written off as disposals in the year, which resulted in no loss of profit on disposal.
Outlook
As the Director General’s Introduction explains, the Society is well advanced in undertaking our
Strategic Investment Programme. Over the next 3-4 years, we will be closely focused on the
successful implementation of the major capital projects while attending to the equally important dayto-day business of the RHS. With planning applications being submitted on several of the larger
projects in the first half of 2016, the momentum of the Strategic Investment Programme is now
building rapidly. As I have indicated in previous years’ reports, we will need to deploy a significant
part of both our investment reserves and our future annual operating surpluses to meet an
investment programme of this scale. In addition, to supplement the Society’s own resources, we will
need to raise additional funds from donors and external funding bodies and this will be a crucial part
of our efforts in 2016. Given the size and ambition of the plans, we need to ensure and maintain
tight governance structures and these have been put in place around each of the major projects in
order to control carefully both the financial and the project management challenges that they present.
I look forward to the future with excitement and confidence as we see the results of our hard work
and investment begin to bear fruit.

Alastair Muirhead
Treasurer
Date: 23 May 2016
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Structure, Governance and Management
The Society is a registered Charity incorporated and governed by a Royal Charter and by Bye-Laws
approved by the membership. A copy of the Charter and Bye-laws can be found in the ‘About the
RHS’ section of the website (www.rhs.org.uk) or obtained on request from The Secretary at the
address shown at page 4.
A summary of the Society’s structure, governance and management arrangements in 2015/16 is
provided below. This structure – which emphasises the ‘H’ for ‘Horticulture’ in RHS – has been in
place since December 2012.
Council and Trustees
The governing body of the RHS is Council. This comprises the President, Treasurer and up to fifteen
ordinary members, all of whom are elected by the RHS membership, and up to two co-opted
members. The members of Council are the Trustees of the Society. The President is the Chairman
of Council. The current members of Council are shown on page 2.
Election and Appointment to Council
The President and Treasurer are elected annually by the members of the Society at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM). The other fifteen elected members of Council usually serve for an initial
term of five years with at least three retiring each year and their successors being elected at the
AGM.
Co-opted members are appointed by Council to serve for up to one year to the date of the AGM with
the opportunity of re-appointment for one further year. Co-option provides an opportunity to recruit
additional members to Council who offer particular skills, knowledge and experience.
If a vacancy arises during the year, Council has the power to appoint a new member. An appointed
member will serve until the date of the next AGM, after which the post will be filled by election.
All members of Council must be members of the RHS and eligible under Charity law to serve as a
Trustee. No ordinary member of Council may serve for longer than 10 years unless made eligible to
stand for election for one further term of up to five years in accordance with the Society’s Bye-laws.
A Nominations, Appointments and Governance Committee comprising both serving members of
Council and other members of the Society, is responsible for identifying candidates for election to
Council after having regard to the role description, the person specification and the skills, knowledge
and experience of existing members. The Committee also makes recommendations on the
candidates that should receive Council’s support at elections.
The rules for the election of President, Treasurer and ordinary members of Council can be found in
the ‘About the RHS’ section of our website. Copies of the role description and person specification
for each of these positions can also be found within the same section.
Council Members’ Induction and Training
Most members of Council have already served on one or more RHS committees before their election.
However, on election, members receive a comprehensive information pack covering the Society’s
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plans and activities. The Society also operates an induction and on-going training programme for all
members of Council aimed at increasing their knowledge of the RHS and the duties and
responsibilities of Trustees.
Council is responsible for:
• The future direction of the Society
• The investment and disposal of Society assets
• The strategic management of the performance of the Society.
• Acting as the guardian of the Society’s role as a “Learned Society”.
Although Council takes all major strategic decisions and those reserved to it by law, it delegates
some decision-making powers to boards, committees and the Executive via the Director General.
The RHS boards and committees may comprise of members of Council and other members of the
RHS and take decisions within the overall strategy and budgets agreed by Council. Council retains
responsibility for the decisions taken by these bodies. The Society’s governance and decisionmaking boards and committees and their responsibilities are:
Audit and Risk Committee – reports to Council and ensures that all aspects of the Society’s
financial and risk management policies, procedures and controls are effective and appropriate. The
Committee also has responsibility for monitoring the approval of contracts involving the payment of
a Trustee or a connected party for the supply of goods and services to the RHS or its trading
companies.
Commercial Board – responsible to Council for the proper management of all aspects of the
Society’s financial affairs and resources. The Board oversees the activities of the Society’s trading
companies.
Council Key Investment Programme (KIP) Group – reports to Council and is responsible for
maintaining an overview of the SIP projects and in particular monitoring each project’s operation
against its approved budget and business case, as well as monitoring its related fundraising.
Horticulture Board – responsible to Council for all activities relating to the encouragement and
improvement of the science, art and practice of horticulture in all its branches within the Society. In
this respect, it is the guardian of the Society’s role as Learned Society. The Board is responsible
for offering horticultural, educational and scientific advice to Council on any major initiatives or
developments being considered by the Society.
Investments Committee – reports to the Commercial Board and is responsible for reviewing and
maintaining the Society’s investment portfolio (including bursary funds).
Nominations, Appointments and Governance Committee – reports to Council and is responsible
for identifying and recommending the candidates who should receive Council’s support for election
as members of Council. The Committee is also responsible for the approval of all appointments to
advisory, governance and decision-taking boards and committees of the Society as well as
representatives of the Society on outside bodies. It also monitors and makes recommendations to
Council about any changes to the governance arrangements of the Society.
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Pensions and Remuneration Committee – reports to Council and is responsible for approving the
terms and conditions and levels of pay of the Leadership Team and also considers the policies for
pay and conditions of the Society’s other employees. Further, the Committee is responsible for
representing the Society as the ‘employer’ in the funding and support of The Royal Horticultural
Society (1974) Pension Scheme and in the provision of alternative pension arrangements for
employees if appropriate.
Advisory Groups and Forums
Council and the Leadership Team of the Society also appoint advisory groups and forums to provide
specialist advice to the Society and the wider gardening public. Some 400 members of the Society
have served on these committees during the past year in a voluntary capacity, generously giving
their time and expert knowledge.
The terms of reference for all boards, committees and advisory groups can be obtained from The
Secretary at the address shown at page 4. Further information about the governance and
management arrangements of the Society can also be found on our website.
RHS Trading Companies
Our active trading companies are:
RHS Enterprises Limited (RHSE)
RHS Special Events Limited (RHSSE)
Both companies Gift Aid their profits to the Society, thereby assisting the funding of our noncommercial, charitable activities.
Each trading company has its own Board of Directors. The Directors’ Report and Annual Accounts
for each of the RHS trading companies are available on request from The Secretary of the RHS.
Management of the Society
The day-to-day running of the Society is delegated to the Director General and her Leadership Team.
A copy of the scheme of delegations to the Leadership Team can be found in the ‘About the RHS’
section of our website or on request from The Secretary. Each Leadership Team member has a
division under their control and is responsible for the Society’s operational activities and delivery of
the Strategic Objectives agreed by Council. The Leadership Team during 2015/16 were:
Ms Sue Biggs
Mrs Ruth Evans
Dr Alistair Griffiths
Mr Mark Norman
Ms Hayley Monckton
Mrs Jan Nix
Ms Lucy Semmens
Mr Matthew Rooke
Mr Tom Shelston
Dr Tim Upson

Director General
Director of Education, Funding & Communities
Director of Science & Collections
Director of Finance (appointed 29 April 2015)
Director of Communications
Director of HR, IT & Internal Audit (HR relinquished 18 January 2016)
Director of Human Resources (appointed 18 January 2016)
Director of Digital
Director of Members, Art & Media (appointed 9 February 2015)
Director of Horticulture
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Salaries of the Society’s Leadership Team are set according to market rates, the level of skills and
experience required to deliver the roles, and affordability. Salaries for the Leadership Team and
Director General are considered annually by the Pensions and Remunerations Committee.
Staff and Volunteers
As at the 31 January 2016, the Society employed 643 full-time and 207 part-time staff (31 January
2015: 614 and 184 respectively). Additional seasonal staff were employed during peak periods. The
Society also received help from more than 1,000 volunteers during the year. This included 600 regular
operational volunteers in the Society’s Gardens with an additional 250 volunteers helping at its Shows
and in the Membership Department and nearly 350 expert supporters of the Society who serve on its
boards, committees and advisory groups.
Reimbursement of expenses
Members of Council do not receive any payment in connection with their position, other than the
reimbursement of reasonable travel and subsistence costs. Members of RHS committees receive
no payment for their work for the Society other than those expenses paid in accordance with a
scheme approved by Council.
Subsidiary and related charities and other related parties
The Lindley Library Trust (registration number 222879-1) is a subsidiary Charity of the RHS. The
members of the Council of the RHS are also the Trustees of the Lindley Library Trust.
The RHS jointly administers The Shropshire Horticultural Society (Wisley Trainee) Charitable Trust
(registration number 701677) with the Shropshire Horticultural Society, with each Charity entitled to
appoint three of the six Trustees.
The Northern Horticultural Society (NHS) merged with the RHS in 2001. To protect the name, The
Northern Horticultural Society Limited (company number 06799077) was formed. It is not intended
that this company will trade. Any donations that continue to fall due to the NHS will in future be
payable direct to the RHS.
The Royal Horticultural Society (1974) Pension Scheme is a related party to the RHS (see Note 26
to the Financial Statements).
The RHS has two trading subsidiaries, RHS Special Events Limited which organises events for
fundraising purposes at the Chelsea and Hampton Court Palace Flower Shows and RHS Enterprises
Limited, which is a garden-related retailer operating at RHS Gardens and online. The results of these
trading companies have been consolidated in the RHS group accounts.
Risk Management
The Society has in place a risk management policy which documents the Society’s underlying
approach to risk management, the roles and responsibilities of Council and the Executive, the key
requirements for reporting and the measures by which the effectiveness of the approach will be
measured. The Society also maintains a risk management register that addresses the major
governance, operational, financial, reputational and regulatory risks that might impact on the
Society’s objectives and its ability to meet them. The register is subject to regular review in order to
take account of emerging new risks and changes in the likelihood of a risk occurring or its impact.

Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

26

THE ROYAL HORTICULTURAL SOCIETY
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2015/16

Progress against risk action plans during the year was monitored by the Audit and Risk Committee
and Council and was considered to be satisfactory.
While Council is of the opinion that it has undertaken all reasonable steps to ensure that the major
risks to which the Society is exposed are identified and reviewed and that there are systems in place
to mitigate them, it is aware that such processes are designed to manage rather than eliminate all
major risks and that it can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance.
Major risks to the Society have been identified as:
a) Strategic Investment Programme (SIP) delivery
To ensure adequate resourcing of the SIPs, recruitment requirements for additional resources
have been identified and actioned. There is continued monitoring to ensure the correct level of
personnel are in place with the correct skills to facilitate delivery of each SIP. Given the importance
of external fundraising to the financing of the SIP programme, an RHS Fundraising Group has
been established; this meets regularly to monitor fundraising progress and provides regular
updates to Council. There is continual monitoring by the Leadership Team of the high quality of
our “business as usual” activity to ensure that the SIP programme is not in any way detracting
from this.
b) Weather
The weather can significantly impact Garden and Show visitor numbers as well as sales income.
While this cannot be eliminated, measures have been taken to reduce the impact, including
increasing garden events, encouraging pre-booking of tickets and growing online sales.
Council is committed to ensuring that best practice for the identification and management of risk is
applied across the Society.
Health and Safety
The Society maintains rigorous procedures for ensuring the health and safety of its visitors, staff and
volunteers based on proportionate principles of risk management. Council members keep health and
safety under regular review.
Equal Opportunities
The RHS is committed to providing equal opportunities for all employees and to avoiding unlawful
discrimination in employment. The Society regularly reviews practices and policies to ensure that
they effectively assist in putting this commitment into practice.
Employee Involvement
The decision-making processes incorporate regular feedback from the Employee Consultation
Group, as a representative group for all employees across all RHS Sites. The ECG meets quarterly
with the Director General, Director of Human Resources, Senior Managers and members of the
Leadership Team.
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

Statement
of the
Trustees'
The Trustees are responsible
for preparing
Trustees’ Responsibilities
Annual Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the financia
accordance
with and
applicable
lawInvestment
and regulations.
The Charities Act 2011 in
and
the Charities
Trustee
(Scotland) Act 2005, and the
regulations made thereunder, requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each
The with
Charities
2011 and
the Charities
andAccounting
Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 20
financial year in accordance
UnitedAct
Kingdom
Generally
Accepted
Practice (United
regulations
thereunder,
requires
the102
Trustees
to prepare
financial stateme
Kingdom Accounting Standards
andmade
applicable
law), including
FRS
The Financial
Reporting
financial
in accordance
United
Accepted
Pra
Standard applicable in the
UK andyear
Republic
of Ireland,with
which
give Kingdom
a true andGenerally
fair view of
the stateAccounting
of
Standardsresources
and applicable
law), including
FRS 102 The Financi
affairs of the Charity andKingdom
the groupAccounting
and of the incoming
and application
of the resources,
applicable
the UKand
andgroup
Republic
of Ireland,
give a true
and fair view o
including the income andStandard
expenditure,
of theinCharity
for that
period.which
In preparing
these
affairs
of
the
Charity
and
the
group
and
of
the
incoming
resources
and
application
of th
financial statements, the Trustees are required to:
including the income and expenditure, of the Charity and group for that period. In pre
financial
statements,
theapply
Trustees
required to:
•
select suitable accounting
policies
and then
themare
consistently;
•
observe the methods and principles set out in the Charities SORP (FRS 102);
select suitable
accounting
and and
thenprudent;
apply them consistently;
•
make judgments and• accounting
estimates
that arepolicies
reasonable
•
observe
the methods
and principles
out in the
Charities
SORP
(FRS 102);
•
state whether applicable
UK Accounting
Standards
have beenset
followed,
subject
to any
material
judgments
accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
departures disclosed• andmake
explained
in the and
financial
statements;
• statements
state whether
applicable
Accounting
been followed,
•
prepare the financial
on the
going UK
concern
basis Standards
unless it ishave
inappropriate
to subject to
departures
disclosed
and
explained
in
the
financial
statements;
presume that the Charity and group will continue in business.
•
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inap
thatproper
the Charity
and group
will that
continue
in business.
The Trustees are responsiblepresume
for keeping
accounting
records
are sufficient
to show and
explain the Charity’s and group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
Trusteesand
arethe
responsible
for enable
keepingthem
proper
that are sufficient
the financial position of The
the Charity
group and
to accounting
ensure thatrecords
the financial
explain
the
Charity’s
and
group’s
transactions
and
disclose
with
reasonable
statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations accuracy
the financial
position
of the Charity
andthe
theCharities
group and
enable(Scotland)
them to ensure that
2008, the Charities and Trustee
Investment
(Scotland)
Act 2005,
Accounts
statementsand
comply
with the Charities
Act 2011,
(Accounts
and Reports)
Regulations 2006 (as amended)
the provisions
of the trust
deed.the
TheCharity
Trustees
are also
2008,
Charities
Trustee
Investment
(Scotland)
2005,
the Charities Accoun
responsible for safeguarding
thethe
assets
of theand
Charity
and the
group and
hence forAct
taking
reasonable
Regulations
(asand
amended)
and the provisions of the trust deed. The Truste
steps for the prevention and
detection2006
of fraud
other irregularities.
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charity and the group and hence for takin
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Trustees confirm that:

The Trustees
so far as each Trustee
is aware,confirm
there isthat:
no relevant audit information of which the Charity’s
auditor is unaware; and
• so
eachthat
Trustee
is aware,
theretaken
is no as
relevant
auditininformation
• the Trustees have taken
all far
theas
steps
they ought
to have
Trustees
order to of which
auditor
is
unaware;
and
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Charity's
• information.
the Trustees have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Trustee
auditor is aware of that
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
auditor
aware of thatand
information.
The Trustees are responsible for
the is
maintenance
integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
The
Trustees
are responsible
the maintenance
and
integrity
of the
governing the preparation
and
dissemination
of financialforstatements
may differ
from
legislation
in corporate a
information
included
on
the
charitable
company’s
website.
Legislation
in the Unit
other jurisdictions.
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
other jurisdictions.
Auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP were reappointed as auditors to the Society at the AGM on 25th June 2015.
Auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP were reappointed as auditors to the Society at the AGM on 25th
•

Sir Nicholas Bacon
President of the RHS and Chair of Council
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Date: 23 May 2016
President of the RHS and Chair of Council
Date: 23 May 2016
Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Trustees of the Royal Horticultural
Society
We have audited the financial statements of the Royal Horticultural Society for the year ended 31
January 2016 which comprise the Group and Society balance sheets, the Group and Society
statements of financial activities, the Group statement of cash flows, and the related notes. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including FRS 102 the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.
This report is made solely to the Charity's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Section 154 of
the Charities Act 2011 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act
2005. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Charity's Trustees those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Charity
and its Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Trustees and auditor
As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 28, the Trustees
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view. We
have been appointed as auditor under sections 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and 44(1)(c) of the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and report in accordance with regulations
made under those Acts. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and parent charity's affairs as at 31
January 2016 and of the Group’s and parent charity’s incoming resources and application of
resources, including the Group and the parent income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011, the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 and the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:
•
•

the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report is inconsistent in any material respect
with the financial statements; or
the parent Charity has not kept sufficient and proper accounting records; or
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•
•

the parent Charity's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London
Date:
Grant Thornton UK LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies
Act 2006
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2016
Unrestricted
Funds
£’000
Note
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
1 iv)
5,444
Donations & Legacies
2

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Endowment
Funds
£’000

2016
Total
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

1,420

-

6,864

7,383

18,313
18,196
5,996
456
317
102

2
2
-

-

18,313
18,196
5,998
458
317
102

16,488
17,475
5,503
592
267
60

23,282
2,027
818
51
75,002

1,424

24
24

23,282
2,027
842
51
76,450

21,894
1,682
1,089
620
73,053

1,259
17,651
377

-

-

1,259
17,651
377

1,247
15,662
387

6,966
15,690
19,504
3,120
1,123
4,500
-

561
188
110
60
-

-

6,966
15,690
20,065
3,308
1,233
4,560
-

8,677
15,095
17,859
3,155
1,011
2,524
15

70,190

919

-

71,109

65,632

4,812

505

24

5,341

7,421

784

-

36

820

3,897

5,596

505

60

6,161

11,318

20a

(16)

89

(73)

-

-

26

1,526

-

-

1,526

(263)

6, 19a, 20a

7,106

594

(13)

7,687

11,055

19a, 20a
19a, 20a

112,488
119,594

5,010
5,604

4,555
4,542

122,053
129,740

110,998
122,053

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES:
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Trading Income
Sponsorship Income
INVESTMENTS
OTHER
Total
EXPENDITURE ON:
RAISING FUNDS
Donations & Legacies
Trading Costs
Sponsorship

2
11
1 v)

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER

3a

Total
NET INCOME BEFORE GAINS ON
INVESTMENTS
Gains on investment assets

8, 12

NET INCOME
Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension scheme
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Reconciliation of funds:
TOTAL FUNDS BROUGHT
FORWARD
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

There are no other gains & losses other than those disclosed above. All transactions are derived from
continuing activities.
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SOCIETY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2016
Unrestricted
Funds
£’000
Note
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
1 iv)
14,753
Donations & Legacies
2

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Endowment
Funds
£’000

2016
Total
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

1,420

-

16,173

15,403

18,071
18,240
7,075
456
317
102

2
2
-

-

18,071
18,240
7,077
458
317
102

16,464
17,508
6,615
557
267
79

818
453
60,285

1,424

24
24

842
453
61,733

1,119
1,017
59,029

1,366
-

-

-

1,366
-

1,346
-

7,101
16,584
21,073
3,340
1,203
4,874
-

561
188
110
60
-

-

7,101
16,584
21,634
3,528
1,313
4,934
-

7,522
14,897
19,627
3,427
1,087
3,645
-

55,541

919

-

56,460

51,551

4,744

505

24

5,273

7,478

784

-

36

820

3,897

5,528

505

60

6,093

11,375

20a

(16)

89

(73)

-

-

26

1,526

-

-

1,526

(263)

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

19b

7,038

594

(13)

7,619

11,112

Reconciliation of funds:
TOTAL FUNDS BROUGHT
FORWARD
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

19b
19b

112,616
119,654

5,010
5,604

4,555
4,542

122,181
129,800

111,069
122,181

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES:
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Trading Income
Sponsorship Income
INVESTMENTS
OTHER
Total
EXPENDITURE ON:
RAISING FUNDS
Donations & Legacies
Trading Costs
Sponsorship
CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER

2
1 v)

3b

Total
NET INCOME BEFORE GAINS ON
INVESTMENTS
Gains on investment assets

8, 12

NET INCOME
Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension scheme

There are no other gains & losses other than those disclosed above. All transactions are derived from
continuing activities.
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CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET
THE
ROYAL HORTICULTURAL
SOCIETY
AS AT Report
31 JANUARY
2016
Annual
and
Consolidated
Financial Statements 2015/16
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 JANUARY 2016
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS
AT ASSETS
31 JANUARY 2016
FIXED
Tangible assets
FIXED ASSETS
Investments
Tangible assets
Investments
FIXED ASSETS

Tangible
assets
CURRENT
ASSETS
Investments
Stock
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Stock
Cash at bank and in hand
Debtors
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
at bank and in hand
Stock
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
Debtors
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS
Cash
at in
bank
and
in hand FALLING
Income
advance
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Creditors
Income
in advance
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS FALLING
Creditors
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Income
in advance
NET CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Creditors
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS
FALLING
NET CURRENT
LIABILITIES
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
FALLINGLIABILITY
NET ASSETS AMOUNTS
BEFORE PENSION
DUE
AFTER
MORE
THAN
ONE liability
YEAR
Defined benefit pension scheme
NET ASSETS BEFORE PENSION LIABILITY
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
NET ASSETS AFTER PENSION LIABILITY
NET ASSETS BEFORE PENSION LIABILITY
NET
ASSETS
LIABILITY
Defined
benefitAFTER
pensionPENSION
scheme liability
CAPITAL FUNDS
Endowments
CAPITAL
FUNDS
NET ASSETS
AFTER PENSION LIABILITY
Endowments
INCOME FUNDS
CAPITAL
Restricted FUNDS
funds
INCOME
FUNDS
Endowments
Unrestricted funds:
Restricted funds
Designated funds
Unrestricted
funds:
INCOME
FUNDS
General
& Trading Funds
Designated
funds
Restricted
Pensionfunds
Reserve
General &funds:
Trading Funds
Unrestricted
Pension
Reserve
Designated
funds
Total
unrestricted
funds
General & Trading Funds
Total
unrestricted
funds
Pension
Reserve
TOTAL
FUNDS
TOTAL
FUNDS funds
Total unrestricted

2016
£’000
£’000
2016
£’000
£’000
54,855
2016 90,773
54,855
£’000 145,628
£’000
90,773
145,628
54,855

Note
Note
12a
8
12a
Note
8
12a
8
15
16
15
24
16
24
15
16
24
17
17
17

1,792
6,741
1,792
11,558
6,741
20,091
11,558
1,792
20,091
6,741
11,558
(21,651)
20,091
(8,011)
(21,651)
(29,662)
(8,011)
(29,662)
(21,651)
(8,011)
(29,662)

18
18
18
26
26
26
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a

108,949
15,694
108,949
(5,049)
15,694
(5,049)
108,949
15,694
(5,049)

20a

90,773
145,628

(9,571)
(9,571)

2015
£’000
£’000
2015
£’000
£’000
53,604
2015 77,540
53,604
£’000 131,144
£’000
77,540
131,144
53,604
1,346
6,204
1,346
19,569
6,204
27,119
19,569
1,346
27,119
6,204
19,569
(20,560)
27,119
(7,932)
(20,560)
(28,492)
(7,932)
(28,492)
(20,560)

77,540
131,144

(1,373)

(7,932)
(28,492)

(1,373)

(1,268)
(9,571)
(1,268)

(1,127)
(1,373)
(1,127)

134,789
(1,268)
(5,049)
134,789
(5,049)
129,740
134,789
129,740
(5,049)

128,644
(1,127)
(6,591)
128,644
(6,591)
122,053
128,644
122,053
(6,591)

4,542
129,740
4,542

4,555
122,053
4,555

5,604
4,542
5,604

5,010
4,555
5,010

5,604
119,594
119,594
129,740
129,740
119,594

79,916
39,163
79,916
(6,591)
39,163
(6,591)
79,916
39,163
(6,591)

5,010
112,488
112,488
122,053
122,053
112,488

These accounts were approved by Council on 11 May 2016 and signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:

TOTAL FUNDS

20a

129,740

122,053

These accounts were approved by Council on 11 May 2016 and signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:
These
accounts
were approved by Council on 11 May Alastair
2016 and
signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:
Sir Nicholas
Bacon
Muirhead
President
Treasurer
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Alastair Muirhead
President
Treasurer
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Registered
President Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

Alastair Muirhead
Treasurer
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CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET
THE
ROYAL HORTICULTURAL
SOCIETY
AS AT Report
31 JANUARY
2016
Annual
and
Consolidated
Financial Statements 2015/16
SOCIETY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST JANUARY 2016
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT ASSETS
31 JANUARY 2016
FIXED
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments
Investments
Investments
in trading companies
FIXED ASSETS

Tangible
assets
CURRENT
ASSETS
Investments
Stock
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Stock
Cash at bank and in hand
Debtors
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
at bank and in hand
Stock
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
Debtors
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS
Cash
at in
bank
and
in hand FALLING
Income
advance
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Creditors
Income
in advance
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS FALLING
Creditors
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Income
in advance
NET CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Creditors
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
AMOUNTS
FALLING
NET CURRENT
LIABILITIES
DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
CREDITORS:
FALLINGLIABILITY
NET
ASSETS AMOUNTS
BEFORE PENSION
DUE
AFTER
MORE
THAN
ONE liability
YEAR
Defined benefit pension scheme
NET ASSETS BEFORE PENSION LIABILITY
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
NET ASSETS AFTER PENSION LIABILITY
NET ASSETS BEFORE PENSION LIABILITY
NET
ASSETS
LIABILITY
Defined
benefitAFTER
pensionPENSION
scheme liability
CAPITAL FUNDS
Endowments
CAPITAL
FUNDS
NET ASSETS
AFTER PENSION LIABILITY
Endowments
INCOME FUNDS
CAPITAL FUNDS
Restricted
funds
INCOME
FUNDS
Endowments
Unrestricted
funds:
Restricted funds
Designated funds
Unrestricted
funds:
INCOME
FUNDS
General
& Trading Funds
Designated
funds
Restricted
Pensionfunds
Reserve
General &funds:
Trading Funds
Unrestricted
Pension
Reserve
Designated
funds
Total
unrestricted
funds
General & Trading Funds
Total
unrestricted
funds
Pension
Reserve
TOTAL
FUNDS

Note
Note
12a
12b
8
8
Note
13
12a
8
15

16
24
16
15
16
24
17
17
17

2016
2016
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

2015
2015
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

54,855
54,891
2016 90,773
90,773
£’000 145,628
£’000
110
145,774
54,855

53,604
53,592
2015 77,540
77,540
£’000 131,144
£’000
110
131,242
53,604

(1,268)
(9,571)
(1,268)

(1,127)
(1,373)
(1,127)

134,789
(1,268)
(5,049)
134,849
(5,049)
129,740
134,789
129,800
(5,049)

128,644
(1,127)
(6,591)
128,772
(6,591)
122,053
128,644
122,181
(6,591)

4,542
129,740
4,542

4,555
122,053
4,555

5,604
4,542
5,604

5,010
4,555
5,010

90,773
77,540
1,792
1,346
145,628
131,144
6,741
6,204
66
76
11,558
19,569
10,334
11,772
20,091
27,119
4,208
11,351
1,792
1,346
14,608
23,199
6,741
6,204
11,558
19,569
(21,651)
(20,560)
20,091
27,119
(8,011)
(7,932)
(17,586)
(16,402)
(29,662)
(28,492)
(6,679)
(8,140)
(24,265)
(24,542)
(21,651)
(9,571) (20,560)
(1,373)
(8,011)
(7,932)
(9,657) (28,492)
(1,343)
(29,662)

18
18
18
26
26
26
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a
20a

108,949
15,694
108,949
(5,049)
15,754
(5,049)
108,949
15,694
(5,049)

TOTAL
FUNDS funds
Total unrestricted

5,604
119,594

79,916
39,163
79,916
(6,591)
39,291
(6,591)
79,916

39,163
119,654 (6,591)
129,740
129,800
119,594

5,010
112,488
112,616
122,053
122,181
112,488

These accounts were approved by Council on 11 May 2016 and signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:

TOTAL FUNDS

20a

129,740

122,053

These accounts were approved by Council on 11 May 2016 and signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:
These
accounts
were approved by Council on 11 May Alastair
2016 and
signed on their behalf on 23 May 2016 by:
Sir
Nicholas
Bacon
Muirhead
President
Treasurer
Sir Nicholas Bacon
President
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Registered
President Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

Alastair Muirhead
Treasurer
Alastair Muirhead
Treasurer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JANUARY 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received from investments
Dividends received from investments
Sale of investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Movement in Cash within pooled investments

Note

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

2015
£’000
£’000

7,473

15,295

22

12a

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

2016
£’000
£’000

133
746
10,951
(2,610)
(24,618)
(160)

135
1,027
10,369
(2,546)
(15,335)
(1,808)
(15,558)

(8,158)

23

(8,085)

7,137

24

40,185

33,048

32,100

40,185
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Accounting Policies
i) Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, are prepared
under the historical cost convention with the exception of investments, which are included at market
value. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 2011, the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (effective 1st January 2015), and the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities (Charities
SORP (FRS102)).
This is the first year in which the financial statements have been prepared under FRS102.
The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have
departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to
provide a ‘true and fair’ view. This departure has involved following Accounting and Reporting by
Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) issued on 16th July 2014 rather than the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice effective from 1st April 2005 which has
since been withdrawn.
Across the RHS work is well under way to meet our commitment to invest £160 million into the future
of horticulture over the next decade. After reviewing the Society’s forecasts and projections, the
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Society has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Trustees believe the Society is a going-concern
and have prepared the financial statements on that basis.
Group financial statements have been prepared in respect of the Society and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. The Society’s trading subsidiaries are RHS Enterprises Limited and RHS Special
Events Limited. These subsidiaries are consolidated on a line by line basis and have the same
accounting reference date as the Society. In addition, Horticultural Halls Limited, RHS Publications
Limited and The Northern Horticultural Society Limited are dormant subsidiaries. The Society also
jointly administers The Shropshire Horticultural Society (Wisley Trainee) Charitable Trust and its
financial results are included in the group financial statements as is The Lindley Library Trust, a
subsidiary Charity of the RHS.
ii) Reconciliation with previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
In preparing the accounts, the Trustees have considered whether in applying the accounting policies
required by FRS102 and the Charities SORP (FRS102) the restatement of comparative items was
required.
At the date of transition in applying the requirement to recognise liabilities arising from employee
benefits, a liability was recognised for holiday pay. The initial liability recognised at the date of
transition was for the holiday entitlement arising in the year which was due but not taken. The liability
was for £168k for 2013/14 and £150k in 2014/15.
At the transition date an asset has been recognised for legacies. Due to the change in income
recognition for legacies from certainty of receipt to probability of receipt under FRS102, a further
£127k has been accrued as legacy income in 2013/14 and £23k in 2014/15.
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On transition to FRS102 the RHS has revalued a number of properties; this now represents deemed
cost. All the RHS owned properties in Wisley village have been revalued, as well as the Wisley Shop
and Wisley Plant Centre. The revaluation adjustment on transition to FRS102 is £16,157k. Additional
depreciation of £413k has been accounted for on the revalued properties for 2014/15.
No other restatements were required. In accordance with the requirements of FRS102 a
reconciliation of opening balances is provided. All adjustments relate to unrestricted funds only.

Reconciliation of Group funds and balances

Fund balances as previously stated
Holiday pay accrual
Legacy income recognition
Property revaluation
Additional depreciation - Properties
Funds restated under FRS102

Reconciliation of net income and expenditure

Total
funds
31.01.15
£'000

Total
funds
01.02.14
£'000

106,436

94,882

(150)
23
16,157
(413)

(168)
127
16,157
0

122,053

110,998

Total
31.01.15
£'000

Net income under previous GAAP

8,166

Holiday pay
Pension Costs
Legacy income recognition
Additional depreciation - Properties

18
(245)
(105)
(413)

Net income restated under FRS102

7,421

iii) Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds comprise the Designated funds, the General fund, non-charitable trading funds,
and the Pension Reserve. Designated funds are General funds designated for specific purposes by
Council. The General fund is the accumulation of surpluses and deficits and is available for use at
the discretion of Council in furtherance of the Society’s general charitable objectives. The noncharitable trading funds represent the reserves of the trading subsidiaries. The Pension Reserve
represents the deficit or surplus on the Royal Horticultural Society (1974) Pension Scheme on an
FRS102 basis (see Note 26).
Restricted funds are funds that are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by
the donors. Permanent endowment funds are capital funds where Council has no power to convert
the capital into income. The Society’s endowment funds are managed on a total return distribution
basis. Income generated from the endowment funds are added to the capital endowment fund. 3.5%
of the endowment fund balance at 30th September is released as restricted income in the following
financial year.
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The Society was granted permission by the Charity Commission on 28 November 2012 to adopt
the use of a total return policy in relation to its permanent endowment funds. The Society adopted
this policy from the financial year ended 31 January 2014 (see Note 20b).
iv) Incoming resources
Incoming resources represent the total income receivable during the year comprising membership
subscriptions, income from shows, gardens, horticulture, scientific, community and educational
activities, income from trading subsidiaries, investment income, legacies, donations and sundry other
income.
Donations and legacy income are recognised in the accounts when there is entitlement, probability
of receipt and the amount is quantifiable. Donations income includes gift aid donations on
membership subscriptions and garden entry tickets. Gift Aid is recognised on an accruals basis.
Members and marketing income is mainly made up of membership subscriptions which are credited
to incoming resources over the period to which the membership relates. Life subscriptions are
credited to income in equal instalments over a ten year period.
Shows income primarily includes ticket sales, trade stand sales, catering commission and other
sundry show income such as catalogues and car parking sales. Income in advance for shows and
other activities is recognised at the time of the show or other activity.
RHS Gardens income includes garden entry ticket sales, rental income from the retail areas located
at the gardens, catering sales and event income.
Community and education income includes grant funding and sponsorship of community projects,
as well as exam and course fees for horticultural qualifications. Exam fee income is recognised at
the time of the exam sitting.
Horticultural income is generated from membership subscriptions and insurance renewals from
Affiliated Societies. All gardening clubs and horticultural societies with an annual membership
subscription are eligible to join the RHS Affiliated Societies scheme.
Science and collections income is primarily funding received from outside bodies to carry out
horticultural scientific studies.
Trading income is generated through retail areas at each RHS garden, mail order sales, the letting
out of event space in London, publications such as The Garden magazine, commercial images and
gala income from the RHS Chelsea Flower Show and the RHS Hampton Court Palace Flower Show.
Sponsorship income is generated through sponsorship of the RHS flower shows and the sale of
show television rights.
Investment income is generated from dividend and interest received from RHS investments. The
RHS invests its funds with investment managers upon a real return investment mandate. Investment
income is recognised on an accruals basis.
No income has been reported net of expenditure.
v) Resources expended
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been allocated to the appropriate
heading in the accounts. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to a particular heading they have
been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of the resource.
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Expenditure on raising funds includes the costs incurred in generating voluntary income. Donations
and legacies expenditure are the costs of those activities. Charitable activity expenditure represents
the costs of shows, gardens, scientific, educational, editorial activities and membership services.
All resources expended are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals basis
inclusive of any irrecoverable VAT.
vi) Allocation of support costs
Support costs relate to those functions that assist the work of the Charity but do not directly undertake
charitable activities. Support costs include the Leadership Team, Building Services, HR, Finance,
Estates, IT and governance which support the RHS activities. These have been allocated between
costs of raising funds and expenditure on charitable activities. The bases on which support costs
have been allocated are set out in Note 5.
vii) Deferred income
Deferred income arises from Members’ subscriptions paid in advance, income for future shows and
income for the future hire of our exhibition halls and conference facilities.
viii) Depreciation and impairment
Fixed assets are stated at cost or donated valuation. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of fixed assets by equal instalments over their expected useful economic lives. The depreciation
rates are as follows:
Freehold and Leasehold Buildings 2%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant & equipment, fixtures & fittings 5-33%
Where it has been identified that the recoverable amount of a fixed asset is below its net book value
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised on the
Statement of Financial Activities. Equipment purchases below £2,000 are treated as revenue items.
Fixed assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset has reached completion; upon
completion the asset is transferred to the appropriate fixed asset class and depreciated at the
appropriate rate.
ix) Investments
Investments are stated at fair value on the balance sheet date. The Statement of Financial Activities
includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluations and disposals throughout the year. The
funds are largely invested to generate an above inflationary return.
x) Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.
xi) Funds transfer
Funds transfers primarily arise when endowment funds are transferred to restricted funds under the
total return distribution basis. Funds transfers also arise from the expenditure of restricted funds on
capital projects. The funds are transferred into general funds as the capital costs are expended.
Fund transfers can also arise due to the reclassification of a restriction.
xii) Pension schemes
The Society contributed during the year to a defined benefit scheme, which was closed to new
entitlements in January 2002. The pension scheme was closed to future service accruals on 31 May
2009. The pension scheme is administered by Trustees and the assets are held separately from

Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

39

THE ROYAL HORTICULTURAL SOCIETY
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2015/16

those of the Society. Independent actuaries complete valuations at frequent intervals, usually
triennially.
The fund movements and liabilities for this Scheme have been recognised in the accounts according
to the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) and as
detailed in Note 26.
The Society also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Society in an independently administered fund. The amount
charged against profits represents the contributions payable to the scheme by the Society in respect
of the accounting period.
xiii) Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. It substantially relates to products sold
in the retail shops and plant centres at our gardens and shows. It does not include any work in
progress.
xiv) Taxation
The Charity is exempt from corporation tax on its charitable activities.
xv) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Charity and its
subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 January 2016.
xvi) Foreign exchange
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
xvii) Financial Instruments
The RHS only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and
subsequently measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank loans which are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
xviii) Heritage Assets
Heritage assets acquired are not recognised in the balance sheet. The Council are of the opinion
that, because valuation information cannot be obtained at a cost commensurate with the benefits to
users of the financial statements, a valuation approach is not practicable and so the Society has
adopted a non-recognition approach. The Council are also of the opinion that, because the
acquisition of new items for the collection is infrequent, the amounts involved are not material, either
year-by-year in respect of income, or collectively, in relation to the balance sheet. Expenditure which
is required to preserve or prevent further deterioration of individual collection items is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities when it is incurred. The policies for management and
preservation of the collections are stated in Note 14.
xix) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainties
There are a number of actuarial assumptions used in the quantification of the group’s pension
commitments which are described in Note 26. There are a number of assumptions in the fair value
of the investment properties. These are described in Note 12c. With the exception of the pension
commitments and investment property fair value assumptions, there are no material judgements or
estimates applied in the preparation of these accounts.
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xx) Changes to accounting estimates
The useful economic life of the revalued properties in Wisley village have been re-assessed. This is
now deemed to be 50 years from the initial revaluation date of 1st February 2014. The Shop and
Plant Centre at Wisley were revalued at 1st February 2014, however the useful economic life of these
properties is now deemed to be a further 4 years due to demolition by 31st January 2019. Accelerated
depreciation has been charged on these properties so that they will be fully depreciated by that date.
2. Income
Legacy Income
At the date of signing these accounts the Society had not been notified of any material legacies
which are not included within these accounts.
Investment Income
Investment income of £842k is made up of income from listed investments of £740k and interest
from cash holdings of £102k.
3a. Analysis of Expenditure on Charitable Activities - Group
The total resources expended on charitable activities in the Group during the year comprise the
following:

Charitable expenditure
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections

Direct
Cost
£’000

Support
Cost
£’000

2016
Total
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

5,633
14,140
14,370
2,527
948
3,195

1,333
1,550
5,695
781
285
1,365

6,966
15,690
20,065
3,308
1,233
4,560

8,677
15,095
17,859
3,155
1,011
2,524

Total Resources Expended

40,813

11,009

51,822

48,321

Support costs totalling £11.0m (2015: £9.2m) have been allocated across activities. These include
costs associated with providing IT, payroll, human resources, finance, marketing and other central
services to the Charity's staff, volunteers, gardens and other activities. The majority of costs have
been allocated on headcount. Marketing, Head Office revenue projects and Facilities have been
allocated on the direct costs of the various activities (see Note 5a).
Expenditure increases are mainly due to additional spend on Key Investment Projects as part of the
Strategic Investment Programme, and accelerated depreciation on buildings due to be demolished
in 2018/19 as a consequence of the proposed development at Wisley.
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3b. Analysis of Expenditure on Charitable Activities - Society
The total resources expended on charitable activities in the Society during the year comprise the
following:

Charitable expenditure
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections

Direct
Cost
£’000

Support
Cost
£’000

2016
Total
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

5,404
14,503
14,370
2,527
948
3,195

1,697
2,081
7,264
1,001
365
1,739

7,101
16,584
21,634
3,528
1,313
4,934

7,522
14,897
19,627
3,427
1,087
3,645

Total Resources Expended

40,947

14,147

55,094

50,205

4. Governance Costs
Audit Fees
Internal Audit
Committees and AGM costs

2016
£’000
43
157
87

2015
£’000
38
120
79

287

237

Governance costs relate to the general running of the Charity and include costs for internal and
external audit, legal advice for Trustees, and costs associated with meeting constitutional and
statutory requirements such as the cost of Trustee meetings and the preparation of the statutory
accounts.
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5a. Analysis of Governance and Total Support costs - Group

Leadership Team
Finance & Estates
IT
Internal Audit
Building Services
Press & PR
Digital
HR
Marketing
Revenue Projects
Facilities

Add back
recharges for
governance costs

Governance
£’000

Donations &
Legacies
£’000

Trading
£’000

Sponsorship
£’000

Charitable
Activities
£’000

Total
£’000

Basis of
apportionment

130
157
-

44
66
58
11
12
20
13
46
9
3

431
643
571
106
118
193
127
688
128
39

17
3
1

1,649
2,473
2,187
404
450
738
486
1,932
358
110

2,124
3,312
2,816
157
521
580
951
626
2,683
498
153

Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs

287

282

3,044

21

10,787

14,421

(287)

6

59

-

222

-

-

288

3,103

21

11,009

14,421

5b. Analysis of Governance and Total Support costs - Society

Leadership Team
Finance & Estates
IT
Internal Audit
Building Services
Press & PR
Digital
HR
Marketing
Revenue Projects
Facilities

Add back
recharges for
governance costs

Governance
£’000

Donations &
Legacies
£’000

Trading
£’000

Sponsorship
£’000

Charitable
Activities
£’000

Total
£’000

Basis of
apportionment

130
157
-

55
83
73
13
15
25
16
65
12
4

-

-

2,069
3,132
2,743
507
565
925
610
2,681
486
149

2,124
3,345
2,816
157
520
580
950
626
2,746
498
153

Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Headcount
Direct Costs
Direct Costs
Direct Costs

287

361

-

-

13,867

14,515

(287)

7

-

-

280

-

-

368

-

-

14,147

14,515
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6. Net Movement of Funds
Net movement of funds is arrived at after charging / (crediting):

Depreciation (including trading companies)
Auditors' remuneration:
- Audit current year
- Audit (over)/under provision prior year
- Other professional services
Internal Audit
Operating lease rentals - Land & Buildings
- Other Assets

2016
£’000
2,700

2015
£’000
2,386

43
(15)
41
157
83
100

38
(24)
21
120
67
114

7. Employee Remuneration

Employee costs during the period:
Salaries and wages
Social Security
Pensions

Permanent Staff
2016
2015
£’000
£’000
19,294
1,836
2,226
23,356

17,428
1,617
2,045
21,090

Casual Staff
2016
2015
£’000
£’000
1,851
113
43
2,007

1,539
93
36
1,668

Total
2016
2015
£’000
£’000
21,145
1,949
2,269
25,363

18,967
1,710
2,081
22,758

Redundancy and termination payments in 2016 amounted to £88k (2015: £95k). These payments
were as a result of a review of resources required. There are no outstanding redundancy and
termination payment liabilities for 2016 (2015: £nil).
The average number of regular full-time and regular part-time employees calculated on a full-time
basis during the year was:

Staff employed in funds generation:
Trading activities
Fundraising activities
Staff employed in disbursement of Charitable expenditure:
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
Support
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Number

2015
Number

128
13

126
10

57
41
276
36
13
67
111
742

57
39
258
38
10
66
90
694
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Key management personnel for the Group and for the Society are the same and have been
determined to be the Leadership Team and the Trustees. See page 25 for a list of members of the
Leadership Team and page 2 for a list of Trustees. The members of Council are the Trustees of the
Society.
Remuneration in respect of the Leadership Team was as follows:

Emoluments
Pension contributions

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

1,040
102
1,142

795
71
866

During the year, 10 Leadership Team members participated in the pension scheme.
The total number of employees whose remuneration in the year, excluding pension contributions
paid directly by the Society, exceeded £60,000 was:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000
£130,001 - £140,000
£170,001 - £180,000
£190,001 - £200,000

2016
Number

2015
Number

9
3
5
3
2
1
2
1
0
1

8
8
2
1
0
1
0
0
1
0

27

21

The number of these employees for whom the Society made pension contributions was:
Defined benefit
Defined contribution

27

20

The Society contributed £209k (2015: £147k) to defined contribution pension schemes on behalf of
employees whose annual remuneration exceeded £60,000.
No remuneration has been paid to any member of the Society's Council. Council members were
reimbursed a total of £23k (2015: £23k) for travel and subsistence expenses during the period. The
number of Council members reimbursed for expenses was 16 (2015: 17).
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The Leadership Team were reimbursed a total of £49k (2015: £36k) for expenses during the
period.
2016
£000

2015
£000

43
1
5

30
2
4

49

36

Travel & Subsistence
Entertaining
Accommodation

8. Fixed Asset Investments
UK Cash
Instruments
£’000

UK
Property
£’000

Unit
Trusts
£’000

Total
£’000

Market Value at 1 February 2015
Less: Disposal proceeds
Add: acquisitions at cost
Add: net loss on revaluation at 31 January
Add: net movement in cash

15,786
87

80
-

61,674
(10,951)
24,618
(521)
-

77,540
(10,951)
24,618
(521)
87

Market value at 31 January 2016

15,873

80

74,820

90,773

Historical cost at 31 January 2016

15,873

30

71,037

86,940

Analysed as follows

£000

UK Fixed Interest
Overseas Fixed Interest
UK Equities
Overseas Equities
Index Linked
Commodities
Cash Instruments held within pooled investment vehicles*

27,945
18,773
3,119
15,464
3,326
1,524
4,669
74,820

Cash Instruments held separately**
Market value at 31 January 2016
UK Property

15,873
90,693
80

Market value at 31 January 2016

90,773

Investments in UK at market value
Investments outside the UK at market value
Market Value of UK and Non-UK Investments

33,019
41,801
74,820

*Cash instruments held within pooled investment vehicles managed by third party investment managers
**Cash instruments managed by RHS
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Restricted and unrestricted funds at market value of £86.58m are invested in a diversified portfolio
of equity, fixed interest and cash investments with a level of risk appropriate to the Society's
charitable status.
Endowment funds amounting to £4.19m are invested in compliance with the Trustees Act 2000.
Historical cost of Fixed Asset Investments includes, for each pooled investment vehicle, income
received which has been reinvested during the financial period of that investment vehicle. This
totalled £653k.
Investments that represented more than 5% of the total portfolio
were as follows:
Cash Instruments
RLAM Cash Plus Fund
Troy Trojan Fund
Veritas Global Real Return Fund

Total gain on investment assets
Net loss on revaluation of investments at 31 January 2016
Gain on revaluation of investment properties*

£’000
15,873
47,239
13,857
13,725

£'000
(521)
1,341
820

*Investment properties are included in Note 12.

9. Taxation
An amount equivalent to the profit chargeable to corporation tax has been paid each year by its two
subsidiaries to the RHS under Gift Aid. The two subsidiaries are subject to tax but gift aid all their
profits to the Charity.

10. Commitments for future expenditure
Future capital commitments on signed contracts are £741k (2015: £283k), relating to the Key
Investment Projects within the Strategic Investment Programme. Included in this number are
improvements to RHS Garden Hyde Hall (£423k) and Wisley (£281k).

11. Other incoming resources
Other incoming resources of £51k (2015: £620k) are primarily from rental income from investment
properties in Wisley village and from rental income for phone masts situated on RHS property.
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1,095
-

58,862
1,010
(100)
(6,713)

53,059

10,189
2,116
(100)
-

12,205

40,854

48,673

COST/MARKET
VALUE
At 1 February 2015
Additions
Disposals
Revaluations
Transfers

At 31 January 2016

DEPRECIATION
At 1 February 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers

At 31 January 2016

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 January 2016

At 1 February 2015

-

8,905

-

-

8,905

1,341
7,564

Investment
properties
£’000
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1,250

1,051

494

536
(42)
-

1,545

1,786
(241)

Buildings
on Wisley
trust land
£’000

No assets are held under finance lease. All tangible assets are used for charitable purpose.
Investment properties are held at market value.

740

718

377

355
22
-

1,095

Leasehold
land and
buildings
£’000

Freehold
land and
buildings
£’000

a) Consolidated

12. Tangible Fixed Assets
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1,429

1,184

-

-

1,184

1,429
535
(780)

Assets in
construction
£’000

570

1,145

909

813
338
(242)
-

2,054

1,383
755
(242)
158

Plant
and
equipment
£’000

942

998

1,194

997
266
(69)
-

2,192

1,939
310
(69)
12

Fixtures
and
fittings
£’000

53,604

54,855

15,179

12,890
2,700
(411)
-

70,034

66,494
2,610
(411)
1,341
-

Total
£’000
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1,095
-

58,862
1,010
(100)
(6,713)

53,059

10,189
2,116
(100)
-

12,205

40,854

48,673

COST/MARKET
VALUE
At 1 February 2015
Additions
Disposals
Revaluations
Transfers

At 31 January 2016

DEPRECIATION
At 1 February 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers

At 31 January 2016

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 January 2016

At 1 February 2015

-

8,905

-

-

8,905

1,341
7,564

Investment
properties
£’000

1,250

1,051

494

536
(42)
-

1,545

1,786
(241)

Buildings
on Wisley
trust land
£’000

Registered Charity Number 222879/ SC038262

No assets are held under finance leases. All tangible assets were held for charitable purposes.
Investment properties are held at market value.

740

718

377

355
22
-

1,095

Leasehold
land and
buildings
£’000

Freehold
land and
buildings
£’000

b) Society
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1,429

1,184

-

-

1,184

1,429
535
(780)

Assets in
construction
£’000

620

1,201

739

620
332
(213)
-

1,940

1,240
755
(213)
158

Plant
and
equipment
£’000

880

978

938

774
224
(60)
-

1,916

1,654
310
(60)
12

Fixtures
and
fittings
£’000

53,592

54,891

14,753

12,474
2,652
(373)
-

69,644

66,066
2,610
(373)
1,341
-

Total
£’000
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The Trustees are aware that there is a material difference between the carrying value of some
freehold land and buildings in these accounts and the market value of the freehold land and
buildings belonging to the Society, but do not believe that there is value, commensurate with
the associated cost, in ascertaining that market value at this time.
c) Gains on investment properties
2016
£’000
Market valuation b/f

0

Transfers
Revaluation gain

7,564
1,341

Market valuation c/f

8,905

Market valuations are based on the fair value of the properties at the balance sheet date,
which is deemed to be the open market values at November 2015 for RHS-owned residential
properties within Wisley village. There has not been a significant change in value between the
date of the valuation and the balance sheet date.
Market valuations have been provided by an independent property and construction
consultancy. The company is regulated by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.
There have been virtually no direct comparable property sales within Wisley village. In order
to provide market valuations, consideration has been given to the most relevant property
transactions within the local area. The revaluation gain reflects the average house price rise
in Surrey between the original valuation in February 2014 and November 2015.
The state of repair and condition of the properties has been taken into account, but they do
not include building surveys or inspection of areas which were covered, unexposed or
inaccessible. The valuations assume areas not seen are in good repair and condition unless
otherwise indicated.
Transfers relate to freehold buildings reclassified as investment properties in the period. The
transfers are for RHS owned properties in Wisley village that are either vacant and are being
prepared to rent out on the open market, or are for properties that are currently on the open
rental market.
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13. Investment in Trading and Other Companies
The Society’s total investment in 2016 and 2015 of £110,101 consists of £100,000 in RHS
Enterprises Limited; £100 in RHS Special Events Limited; £10,000 in Horticultural Halls
Limited and £1 in RHS Publications Limited. The Society has 100% ownership in all four
companies.
Horticultural Halls Limited and RHS Publications Limited are both dormant companies. The
Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet for the two trading subsidiaries, RHS Enterprises
Limited and RHS Special Events Limited are shown below.
RHS
Enterprises
£’000

RHS Special
Events
£’000

Total
£’000

Turnover
Cost of Sales

21,089
(8,912)

4,504
(960)

25,593
(9,872)

Gross profit
Administration expenses
(net of interest receivable)
Other operating income

12,177

3,544

15,721

(6,445)
377

(274)
-

(6,719)
377

Net profit
Amount gift aided to the Society
Taxation

6,109
(6,114)
-

3,270
(3,195)
-

9,379
(9,309)
-

(5)

75

70

Profit & Loss Account

Profit/(loss) for the year

The figures above include the transfer of trading items between the Society and its subsidiaries
which have been eliminated in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (SoFA) to
show income of £25.6m and net profit of £10.5m. These results form part of the Trading and
Sponsorship activities on the SoFA.
RHS
Enterprises
£’000

RHS Special
Events
£’000

Total
£’000

85
6,305
(1,810)
(11)
(4,413)

4,064
(3,357)
(718)

85
10,369
(5,167)
(11)
(5,131)

Net (Liabilities)/Assets

156

(11)

145

Share Capital
Reserves

100
56

(11)

100
45

Equity Shareholders' funds

156

(11)

145

Balance Sheet
Fixed Assets
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Amounts owing to the Society

Registered Charity Number 222879/
SC038262
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14. RHS Heritage Assets
The RHS holds two categories of Heritage Assets, the Lindley Library Collection and the RHS
Herbarium. These assets are not valued on a regular basis as the Trustees do not believe
that the value of ascertaining their market value would be commensurate with the associated
cost.

The RHS Lindley Library Collection
The RHS Lindley Library Trust of which the RHS are Trustees holds an extensive collection
of Heritage Assets that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge
of horticulture. They relate to the history of the Society, and its many activities – such as its
scientific work and flower shows. Its collections also encompass the wider history of
horticulture in this country, covering 500 years of the history of gardening and garden plants.
They document the art, science and practice of horticulture including growing fruit and
vegetables, social history of gardening, plant exploration, domestic produce and allied
activities such as beekeeping and commercial horticulture.
The collections are in three main areas:
• Printed works: The Library contains over 80,000 books, dating from 1514 to the present day.
Its special strengths are rare early gardening works and hand coloured illustrated works on
garden plants, especially from the 19th Century. It has extensive holdings of ephemeral
material including the largest collection of nursery catalogues in this country, plus garden
guides, posters, postcards - all connected to gardens and gardening.
• Archives, manuscripts and artefacts: The Library holds the archives of the Society, which
provide an unrivalled record of the development of the RHS since its foundation in 1804, as
well as five hundred years of the history of gardening and flower shows. It also contains the
archives of important horticultural personalities and commercial firms; the archive collection is
a unique resource for historians.
• Art and Images. The collection includes over 23,000 botanical art works depicting garden
plants, a special collection of 7,000 orchid paintings, 200,000 photographs from the late 19th
Century onwards (including rare auto chromes and cartes de visite).
Acquisitions to the collections are made by purchase or donation according to the Collections
Policy. Disposals generally occur when an item is a duplicate of another item in the collection
(some duplicates are kept for operational purposes) or an item does not accord with the
Collections Policy. Any monies acquired from disposal of items e.g. via book sales, are used
to purchase other items for the collections or to fund library projects.
Public Access
The Library is part of the charitable delivery of the RHS. Its collections are accessible to
researchers and the wider public through its 5 libraries, its enquiry service, through a detailed
online catalogue, exhibitions, publications and an on-going programme of digitisation. Over
50,000 visitors use the libraries each year.

Registered Charity Number 222879/
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Herbarium
The Royal Horticultural Herbarium at Wisley is the largest Herbarium dedicated to the study
and research of ornamental plants in the UK and has an international role as a major repository
of standard specimens of cultivated garden plants.
Composition and Remit:
•
•

The current Herbarium is estimated to exceed 83,000 specimens, mostly collected post1980 but many earlier specimens. Gathering of specimens began around 1960.
The majority of specimens are of ornamental plants. Collections come principally from the
following sources:
i
ii
iii
iv
v

•

•
•

It incorporates a number of major collections including the British Pteridological Society
(BPS) herbarium of fern cultivars, the Alpine Garden Society and the Heather Society
herbaria and the Frederick Hanbury herbarium of European plants collected mainly in the
19th Century.
Around 1000 new specimens are collected and pressed each year.
Wild collected plants are not a focus of the Herbarium, but are represented by a number
of collections:
i
ii
iii
iv

•

RHS gardens, especially Wisley
RHS Trials
RHS Shows, primarily the plants that are given awards
Plant Heritage collections
Plants sent for identification to the Botanists by members

Hanbury Herbarium
Botanical expeditions searching for garden-worthy plants, such as George Forrest,
Ludlow & Sherriff, and some more recent Society funded expeditions.
Donated historical collections.
Native and naturalised plants, especially those of a weedy nature.

Crop plants, including fruit and vegetables, are not represented to any extent in the
Herbarium.

All new acquisitions and disposals are compared against the Accession Policy (May 2008).
The Herbarium started capturing digital images of its specimens in 2011 and to date just over
25% of the specimens have been digitised.
Nomenclatural Standards Collection:
These are specimens or images that are used to authoritatively fix the identity of a cultivated
plant and are the equivalent of type specimens in botanical herbaria.
•
•
•

The Herbarium at Wisley was one of the foremost proponents of the Standard Specimen
programme, now an integral part of the International Code of Nomenclature for Cultivated
Plants (2009).
There are 10,050 standard specimens in the Herbarium to date (2,750 Herbarium
specimens, 7,300 images).
The Herbarium continues to add to its collection of standard cultivated garden plants from
RHS Trials, RHS Shows and contributions directly from nurseries and breeders.

Registered Charity Number 222879/
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•

The RHS Herbarium is a member of the Global Plants Initiative (GPI), among over 300
herbaria worldwide. The RHS has contributed images of all its nomenclatural standards
and type specimens to the GPI which can be viewed online on the JSTOR website.

Image Collection:
•

The current Herbarium is complemented by an extensive image collection, consisting of:
i
ii

Around 3,300 watercolour paintings of plants that received an award either in trial
or at a show mainly between 1920 and 1955.
Around 50,000 colour transparencies of plants, mainly from the gardens, shows
and trials between 1970 and 2010 (image acquisition is predominantly digital
nowadays and dealt with separately to the Herbarium).

Access
The collections are occasionally sent on loan to other recognised herbaria or other
institutions. However, the most frequent users of the collection are amateur gardeners and
loans cannot be made to them. A programme has begun to digitise the Herbarium
collections and make them available online. Loans are also more likely to be conducted
by scanning the specimens in the future.

15. Stocks

Finished goods for resale
Other

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

1,729
63

1,270
76

1,792

1,346

Stock recognised in expenditure during the year was £6.8m (2015: £6.5m)
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16. Debtors due within one year

Trade debtors
Amounts due from subsidiaries
undertakings
Other debtors
Taxation recoverable
Prepayments

Consolidated
2016
2015
£'000
£'000
2,684
2,880
1,149
506
2,402
6,741

1,432
147
1,745
6,204

2016
£'000
1,741
5,130

Society

762
506
2,195
10,334

2015
£'000
1,719
7,264
1,178
148
1,463
11,772

17. Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Income in advance: members deferred
subscriptions
Income in advance: other
Income in advance total
Trade creditors
Loan from RHS Enterprises
Taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals

Consolidated
2016
2015
£'000
£'000

2016
£'000

Society

2015
£'000

12,228
9,423
21,651

10,994
9,566
20,560

12,228
5,358
17,586

10,994
5,408
16,402

1,372
1,404
1,041
4,194

1,353
1,131
1,055
4,393

1,054
972
800
3,853

820
1,170
1,132
832
4,186

29,662

28,492

24,265

24,542

All the income in advance at the start of the year was utilised during the year, except life membership.
The balance at the start of the year for these life memberships was £1,261k, £218k was utilised during
2015/16 and deferred income for new life memberships was £427k, resulting in a balance of £1,470k
at 31 January 2016.
The loan from RHS Enterprises incurred interest at 2% above base rate. It was repaid in the year and
therefore there is no financial risk to the Society.

18. Creditors amounts falling due after one year

Income in advance:
members' deferred subscriptions
Income in advance: other

Registered Charity Number 222879/
SC038262

Consolidated
2016
2015
£'000
£'000

2016
£'000

Society

1,254
14

1,068
59

1,254
14

1,068
59

1,268

1,127

1,268

1,127

2015
£'000
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19a. Comparative results by type of fund 2014/15 - Group
Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Endowment
Funds
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

6,043

1,340

-

7,383

16,487
17,475
5,498
582
265
60

1
5
10
2
-

-

16,488
17,475
5,503
592
267
60

21,894
1,682
1,021
620
71,627

1,358

68
68

21,894
1,682
1,089
620
73,053

1,247
15,662
387

-

-

1,247
15,662
387

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER

8,655
15,095
17,664
2,824
877
2,466
15

22
195
331
134
58
-

-

8,677
15,095
17,859
3,155
1,011
2,524
15

Total

64,892

740

-

65,632

NET INCOME BEFORE GAINS ON
INVESTMENTS

6,735

618

68

7,421

Gains on investment assets

3,429

-

468

3,897

10,164

618

536

11,318

113

1

(114)

-

(263)

-

-

(263)

10,014

619

422

11,055

102,474
112,488

4,391
5,010

4,133
4,555

110,998
122,053

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
Donations & Legacies
CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES:
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Trading Income
Sponsorship Income
INVESTMENTS
OTHER
Total
Expenditure on:
RAISING FUNDS
Donations & Legacies
Trading Costs
Sponsorship

NET INCOME
Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit pension scheme
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Reconciliation of funds:
TOTAL FUNDS BROUGHT FORWARD
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD
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19b. Comparative results by type of fund 2014/15 - Society
Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Endowment
Funds
£’000

2015
Total
£’000

14,063

1,340

-

15,403

16,464
17,508
6,610
547
265
78

5
10
2
1

-

16,464
17,508
6,615
557
267
79

1,051
1,017
57,603

1,358

68
68

1,119
1,017
59,029

1,346
-

-

-

1,346
-

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER

7,522
14,897
19,432
3,096
953
3,565
-

195
331
134
80
-

-

7,522
14,897
19,627
3,427
1,087
3,645
-

Total

50,811

740

-

51,551

NET INCOME BEFORE GAINS ON
INVESTMENTS

6,792

618

68

7,478

Gains on investment assets

3,429

-

468

3,897

10,221

618

536

11,375

113

1

(114)

-

(263)

-

-

(263)

10,071

619

422

11,112

102,545
112,616

4,391
5,010

4,133
4,555

111,069
122,181

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
Donations & Legacies
CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES:
Members and Marketing
Shows
RHS Gardens
Community and Education
Horticulture
Science and Collections
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Trading Income
Sponsorship Income
INVESTMENTS
OTHER
Total
Expenditure on:
RAISING FUNDS
Donations & Legacies
Trading Costs
Sponsorship

NET INCOME
Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit pension scheme
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Reconciliation of funds:
TOTAL FUNDS BROUGHT FORWARD
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD
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20a. Funds

Balance
01.02.15
£’000

Incoming
Resources
£’000

Resources
Expended
£’000

Transfers
£’000

Gains/
(losses)
£’000

Balance
31.01.16
£’000

2,115
553
296
241
350
200
208
255
177
160

12
4
2
1
1
1
1
1
1

-

(63)
(4)
(10)
(2)
4
4
7
(12)
3

21
5
2
1
2
2
3
2
(2)

2,085
558
290
241
350
207
215
266
168
162

Total Endowed Funds

4,555

24

-

(73)

36

4,542

RESTRICTED FUNDS
Northern Horticultural Society
Garden Development Funds
Education & Training Funds
Field Research facility
Bursary Funds
Other Restricted Funds

996
1,566
2,098
10
2
338

573
731
120

(200)
(616)
(4)
(84)
(15)

(12)
91
10

-

996
1,927
2,213
6
9
453

Total Restricted Funds

5,010

1,424

(919)

89

-

5,604

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
Designated Funds
Fixed Asset Fund
Reserve Policy Fund
Wisley Development Fund

50,696
7,500
379

-

-

1,472
(139)

1,341
-

53,509
7,500
240

Strategic Investment
Programme Fund
KIP: Existing Gardens
KIP: 5th Garden, Bridgewater
KIP: Community Outreach

14,341
7,000
-

-

-

23,359
2,000
1,000

-

37,700
9,000
1,000

Total Designated Funds
General and Trading Funds

79,916
39,163

74,785

(69,989)

27,692
(27,708)

1,341
(557)

108,949
15,694

Pension Reserve

(6,591)

217

(201)

-

1,526

(5,049)

Total Unrestricted Funds

112,488

75,002

(70,190)

(16)

2,310

119,594

TOTAL FUNDS

122,053

76,450

(71,109)

-

2,346

129,740

39,291

60,068

(55,340)

(27,708)

(557)

15,754

ENDOWMENT FUNDS
Coke Trusts
Blaxall Valentine Scholarship
Guerney Wilson Fund
Other Bursary Funds
Hyde Hall Endowment Fund
Wisley Endowment Fund
Eric Young Scholarship
Knowles Bequest
Shropshire Hort Society
Other Endowed Funds

Society only, General and
Trading Fund
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ENDOWMENT FUNDS
The Coke Trust provides bursaries for horticultural students and
training.
The Blaxall Valentine Scholarship established a scholarship for
the collection of plants.
The Guerney Wilson Fund was established to further the
horticultural work of the Society.
The Hyde Hall Endowment Fund was established on the transfer
of the garden into the Society’s care.
The Wisley Endowment Fund was established under the terms
of the Hanbury Trust. It is vested in the Society only so long as the
Society uses Wisley garden as an experimental garden.
The Eric Young Scholarship provides funds for an orchid
student to train at Wisley.
Knowles Bequest for study of horticulture in N England.
The Shropshire Horticultural Society Scholarship provides
funds for a student to train at Wisley.
RESTRICTED FUNDS
The Northern Horticultural Society Funds represent the assets
acquired by the Society on the merger with the Northern
Horticultural Society. These include the gardens at Harlow Carr.
Garden Development Funds are held for development projects
within RHS Gardens.
Education & Training Funds are held for horticultural education
and training.
Field Research Facility is for the development of the centre.
Bursary funds represent the income from the endowed bursary
funds less the expenditure.
Other Restricted funds provide funding for awards, medals and
other horticultural purposes.
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
Designated Funds
The Fixed Asset Fund represents the net book value of the
Society’s tangible fixed assets, excluding those in endowed,
restricted or general and trading funds.
The Reserve Policy Fund represents the risk-assessed reserve
required in the event of a significant disruption to the Society’s
activities.
The Wisley Development Fund has been established to improve
the infrastructure and enable refurbishment of Society owned
properties in Wisley Village.
Strategic Investment Programme (SIP) Funds represents the
funding support which has been specifically designated to date for
the on-going SIP which have been divided into ‘Key Investment
Projects’ (KIP). It is envisaged that this investment programme will
take a minimum of ten years to complete.
KIP: Existing Gardens Fund represents the funding support
which has been specifically designated to capital projects at the
existing RHS Gardens. Projects include:
(i)

The building of a new science centre and knowledge
bank at Wisley. This will provide the facilities to deliver
and engage gardeners with four key strategic science
themes, namely a global knowledge bank on gardening
and garden plants; plant health in gardens; gardening in
a changing world; and plant science for all people, plants
and the planet.
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(ii) A new visitor hub and welcome space at Wisley. The improved
visitor entrance will include an exhibition space. Plant sales
will be at the fore to better engage with visitors and encourage
more people to purchase and grow plants. A dedicated space
for specialist UK nurseries will promote plants and offer
expertise through a series of events. The Wisley shop will
stock our unrivalled range of garden sundries, horticultural
books and gifts, alongside a new café and restaurant facilities,
and a prominent plant centre.
(iii) A new Learning Centre and new horticultural spectacle at
Hyde Hall. The Learning Centre will include a living teaching
garden and will benefit the 144 schools and 10,000 students
across Essex by providing them with a resource to learn about
gardening and horticulture. The UK’s largest perennial
meadow will be created to help inspire and encourage smaller
perennial meadows around the country in people’s own
gardens and community spaces.
(iv) At Harlow Carr the Harrogate Arms will be rescued and
reunited with the historical bath house around which the
garden was founded. The streamside garden will be extended
and exhibition space created within the Harrogate Arms
alongside the addition of a dedicated events building.
KIP: 5th Garden, Bridgewater Fund represents the investment set
aside to develop an additional Society Garden near Salford. This will
provide tens of thousands more people with the benefits of having an
RHS Garden within their vicinity. The garden will have a range of
horticultural features and significant biodiversity of plants. It will have a
calendar of events, including shows, with a focus on learning both for
adults and children, benefitting local schools and communities, and
boosting the local economy by attracting visitors. The garden is due to
open in 2019.
KIP: Community Outreach Fund represents the funding support for
grassroots community gardening. The RHS runs Europe’s biggest
community gardening campaign, RHS Britain in Bloom. Around
300,000 people from a variety of ages, cultures and backgrounds are
involved in transforming public spaces that benefit an estimated 2
million people. This fund is to help support grassroots community
gardening in an even more direct and meaningful way. Our teams give
hands-on support, build local partnerships and create volunteering
opportunities to support community gardening. The funds will help
extend these schemes into more regions around the UK.
The Designated Pension Fund represents the actuarially-assessed
reserve to fund the deficit on the Royal Horticultural Society (1974)
Pension Scheme.
General and Trading Funds
The General and Trading Funds will be used to support the general
working capital requirements of the Society. The proposed expansion
of the scope of the Strategic Investment Programme will require further
funds to be designated in their support in due course. Transfers
between General Trading Funds and Designated Funds will be made
accordingly.
Transfers
Transfers between restricted and unrestricted funds represent capital
expenditure where asset purchase/development satisfies the fund
restriction and as such assets will be held and depreciated in
designated funds. In addition transfers have been made to reflect the
adjustments required for the total return accounting policy. (See Note
20b)

59

THE ROYAL HORTICULTURAL SOCIETY
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2015/16

20b. Endowment Funds
Endowment
£'000

Unapplied
Total Return
£'000

Total
£'000

2,636
350
2,986

1,569
1,569

2,636
350
1,569
4,555

-

24

24

-

36
60

36
60

Unapplied total return allocated to income in the
reporting period

-

(73)

(73)

Net movements in reporting period

-

(13)

(13)

2,986
2,986

1,556
1,556

2,986
1,556
4,542

At beginning of reporting period:
Trust for Investment / permanent endowment
Fixed Asset Endowments
Unapplied total return (Income)
Total

Movements in reporting period:
Gift of endowment funds
Investment return: dividends and interest
Investment return: realised and unrealised gains
and (losses)
Total

At end of the reporting period:
Trust for Investment / permanent endowment
Unapplied total return
Total

21. Analysis of net assets between funds

Endowment
Funds
£'000

Restricted
Funds
£'000

Designated
Funds
£'000

General &
Trading
Funds

Pension
Reserve
£'000

Total
Funds
£'000

£'000
Tangible Fixed Assets
Investments
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Pension Scheme
Liability

350
4,192
-

996
4,608
-

53,509
55,440
-

26,533
20,091
(29,662)
(1,268)

-

54,855
90,773
20,091
(29,662)
(1,268)

-

-

-

-

(5,049)

(5,049)

Total Net Assets

4,542

5,604

108,949

15,694

(5,049)

129,740
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22. Net cash inflow from operating activities

2016
£'000

2015
£'000

Increase in Society funds
Pension Fund movement, excluding actuarial gains/losses
Investment income receivable
Depreciation charge
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

5,341
(16)
(880)
2,700
(446)
(537)
1,311

7,421
371
(1,162)
2,386
69
393
5,817

Net Cash inflow from operating activities

7,473

15,295

23. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash funds
£’000
(8,011)
(74)

Decrease in cash in the year
Cash inflow to cash investments
Movement in net cash funds

£’000

(8,085)

Net cash funds at 1 February 2015

40,185

Net cash funds at 31 January 2016

32,100

24. Analysis of changes in net cash funds

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash included within investments

Registered Charity Number 222879/
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Balance
01.02.15
£’000

Cash
Flows
£’000

Balance
31.01.16
£’000

19,569
20,616

(8,011)
(74)

11,558
20,542

40,185

(8,085)

32,100
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25. Operating leases
As at 31 January 2016 the Society and its subsidiaries future minimum operating lease payments are as
follows:

Land and Buildings:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years
Other:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years

Consolidated
2016
2015
£’000
£’000

Society
2016
£’000

2015
£’000

59

78

59

78

-

59

-

59

96

102

71

79

295

116

223

91

450

355

353

307

26. Pension scheme
The Royal Horticultural Society (1974) Pension Scheme (the Scheme) was closed to future service
accruals on 31 May 2009. A full actuarial valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2014,
which has been updated to 31 January 2016 by a qualified independent actuary. To ensure that the
Scheme’s Statutory Funding Objective is met (ie there are sufficient assets to cover the Scheme’s
technical provisions), an agreement was reached in October 2014 between the Trustees of the
Scheme and the Society that additional contributions will be paid to the Scheme of £18,083 per month
for a period of 10 years beginning 5 April 2014. During the year, contributions of £216,996 were paid
by the Society. A triennial valuation will be conducted in 2017/18, the outcome of which will
determine whether the Society will need to amend its future contributions to the scheme in respect of
any deficit.
1) Employee benefit obligations – amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of unfunded obligations
Unrecognised past service cost
Deficit
Net Liability

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

(26,294)
21,245
––––––
(5,049)

(28,537)
21,946
––––––
(6,591)

––––––
(5,049)

––––––
(6,591)

(5,049)
––––––

(6,591)
––––––

As required under FRS102, the scheme’s assets for this accounting period are based on bid price. The
prior year scheme’s assets were calculated on the same basis.
The pension plan assets do not include ordinary shares issued by the sponsoring employer nor do they
include property occupied by the sponsoring employer.
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2) The amounts recognised in the SoFA are as follows:
2016
£’000
Service cost – including current and past service costs
Service cost – administrative cost
Net interest
Total
Actual return on plan assets

201
––––––
201
––––––
(261)
––––––

2015
£’000
118
253
––––––
371
––––––
2,655
––––––

3) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Member contributions
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid
Closing defined benefit obligation

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

28,537
875
(2,461)
(657)
––––––
26,294
––––––

25,590
1,090
2,363
(506)
––––––
28,537
–––––

Active members of the scheme ceased to accrue benefits in respect of pensionable service from 31
May 2009, although benefits earned prior to this date remain linked to pensionable salary on future
withdrawal or retirement.
4) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest income
Return on assets
Contributions by employer
Member contributions
Benefits paid
Scheme administrative cost
Closing fair value of plan assets
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2016
£’000

2015
£’000

21,946
674
(935)
217
(657)
––––––
21,245
––––––

19,634
837
1,936
163
(506)
(118)
––––––
21,946
––––––
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5) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds
Cash

6) Movement in deficit during the year:

Deficit in scheme at beginning of the year
Movement in year:
Scheme administrative cost
Contributions paid by the employer
Other financial (expenditure)/income
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Deficit in scheme at end of the year

2016
% Total plan
assets

2015
% Total plan
assets

55.1%
35.1%
9.8%

57.3%
34.2%
8.5%

2016
£’000

2015
£’000

(6,591)

(5,956)

217
(201)
1,526
––––––
(5,049)
––––––

(118)
163
(253)
(427)
––––––
(6,591)
––––––

In the period to 31 January 2016 employer contributions of £217k (2015: £163k) were paid into the
scheme. The cost of life insurance was paid in addition.
7) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date
(expressed as weighted averages):
a) Financial assumptions

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Pension escalation in payment
(Retail prices index – maximum 5%)
Inflation assumption
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2016

2015

3.7% pa
3.3% pa

3.1% pa
3.0% pa

3.1% pa
3.3% pa

2.9% pa
3.0% pa
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b) Demographic assumptions
(i)

Assumed life expectancy in years, on retirement at age 65
As at
31.01.16

Retiring today
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

As at
31.01.15

22.4
24.5

22.6
24.7

24.6
26.8

24.7
27.0

(ii) Pre retirement mortality rates
The following mortality rates represent the probability of a person of an exact age, as shown
below, dying within one year.
Age
30
40
50
60

Males
0.0003
0.0005
0.0011
0.0033

Females
0.0002
0.0003
0.0009
0.0024

8) Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Defined benefit obligation

26,294

28,537

25,590

26,048

22,125

Plan assets

21,245

21,946

19,634

19,142

17,757

(Deficit)

(5,049)

(6,591)

(5,956)

(6,906)

(4,368)
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27. Related Party Transactions
The Society maintains a Register of Interests of all Council members and senior staff. Also, the
Society’s financial regulations require an individual to declare an interest and withdraw from any
commercial discussions should a conflict of interest potentially arise.
Council members are not remunerated for fulfilment of their roles. They receive complimentary show
tickets for personal use for the RHS Chelsea Flower Show, the RHS Hampton Court Palace Flower
Show and the RHS Flower Show Tatton Park (President and Treasurer receive 8 show tickets and
Council members receive 4 show tickets).
Commercial relationships with companies or other organisations that might be regarded as related
parties have been reviewed. The Society requires members of Council, non-Council members of the
Commercial Board, and key management personnel to declare any material interests that they may
have in the activities of the Society and its trading companies. Council and the Audit and Risk
Committee consider and approve contracts between Trustees and the Society and its trading
companies. The total cost of these transactions to the RHS in the year is £21,926. The RHS also
received commission from a related party totalling £282,629, and £63,528 catalogue insertion fees from
a related party. Details are as follows:
Mark Fane - Crocus.co.uk Ltd (of which Mark Fane is a Director) has a contract with RHS Enterprises
Limited under which Crocus.co.uk Ltd supply mail order plants under the RHS brands. Crocus.co.uk
Ltd. has paid £282,629 in commission to RHS Enterprises Limited on sales of £1.3 million in the year
ended 31 January 2016. Crocus.co.uk also paid £63,528 for catalogues to be inserted into The Garden
magazine. In addition, Crocus.co.uk Ltd was paid £17,865 for ground works and landscaping at the
RHS Chelsea Flower Show 2016 and £1,320 for images of plants for marketing. As at the 31st January
2016 the balance owed to Crocus.co.uk was nil.
George Anderson – was paid £570 for three question and answer sessions at Gardening Scotland. As
at 31st January 2016 the balance owed to George Anderson was nil.
James Alexander-Sinclair – was paid £599 for an article published in The Garden in October 2015. As
at 31st January 2016 the balance owed to James Alexander-Sinclair was nil.
Neil Lucas – Knoll Gardens (of which Neil Lucas is a Director) was paid £584 for the supply of plants to
RHS Harlow Carr, £102 for the supply of plants to RHS Wisley and £438 for the supply of plants to RHS
Hyde Hall. In addition, £450 for an article published in The Garden in January 2016. As at 31st January
2016 the balance owed to Knoll Gardens was nil.
A total of 16 Council members were paid expenses totalling £22,752 (2015: £23,141) for travel and
subsistence for Council and Committee meetings, and judging at the RHS Flower Shows.
Key management personnel were paid expenses totalling £49,170 (2015: £35,591) for travel and
subsistence, entertainment and accommodation.
All payments are shown net of VAT.
The Royal Horticultural (1974) Pension Scheme is a related party to the RHS, being the former Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme, which is closed to future accrual (see Note 26).
There are no further related party transactions requiring disclosure.
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Donors and Supporters

The RHS relies on the generous gifts, donations and bequests given by members and
supporters.
Legacies
Mr Christopher Adlington
Mr Robert Edward Aldred
Mrs Amy Elizabeth Andrews
Mrs Joan Maxwell Barclay
Mrs Sheila May Barnacle
Mrs Elisabeth Henrietta Bragg
Ms Linda Joyce Brown
Mrs Eileen Vivienne Brunton
Mrs Caroline Carro
Miss Gladys Irene Culver
Mr Roger Alexander Emerson
Miss Cecily Mary Noel Falkner
Mr Bryan David Fisher
Ms Patricia Nora Gordon
Mr Michael Henry Blackwell Gratton
Ms Jillian Mary Greeves
Mr Albert Hartley
Miss Daphne June Hellaby
Mr James Alastair Howarth
Mrs Jocelyn Mary Jones
Mrs June Gertrude Lovell

Mrs Beryl Grace Mackay
Ms Edith Doris Nelson
Mrs Yvonne Kathleen Hazel Paige
Dr Patricia Painter
Miss Jean Christiana Parker
Miss Diana Nancy Parry
Lt Cdr Adrian Roberts
Ms Jean Roberts
Mrs June Mary Rudman
Ms Muriel Eleanor Sayer
Mr Harry Seaton
Mrs Marion Jean Sergeant
Mrs Beryl Joyce Smith
Mrs Mary Elizabeth Steinbach
Mr William Finlay Swift
Dr Sydney Brian Tomlinson
Dr Kathleen Mary Urwin
Mrs Joan Webster
Mr Donald Frederic Wilkinson
Mr Donald Henry Williamson
Ms Christine Sandra Wilson

Donations – Charitable Trusts
Augusta Charitable Trust
The Harriet Burton Charitable Trust
The J F Charitable Fund
The Lord Faringdon Charitable Trust
The National Gardens Scheme
The Oliver Ford Trust
P F Charitable Trust
J Paul Getty Jr Charitable Trust
The Peter Sowerby Foundation
Raspberry Pi Foundation
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Robert Barr’s Charitable Trust
Roger and Ingrid Pilkington Charitable Trust
The Rothermere Foundation
The Royal Commission for the Exhibition of 1851
Salomon Oppenheimer Philanthropic Foundation
Sandra Charitable Trust
The Stanley Smith (UK) Horticultural Trust
The Tanner Trust
The Topinambour Trust
UK Space Agency
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Donations – Fellows
Ms Liz Airey
Henry Angest
Lady Arbib
Sir Nicholas and Lady Bacon
Mr Lawrence Banks
Pam Barrow
The Bellasis Trust
Rosamund Bernays
Simon and Sally Borrows
Molly Lowell Borthwick
Liz and Terry Bramall Charitable Trust
Mrs Jill Buch
Damon Buffini
Mrs Richard Burns
Countess Cairns
Jamie Cayzer-Colvin
Mr William Charnley
Deborah de Furneaux-Hutton
Sir Evelyn de Rothschild
Mr and Mrs Simon de Zoete
Mr Stuart Donachie
Linda Farrell
Cherie H Flores
Alison Fortescue
Christopher Foyle
Mr and Mrs Roger Gabb
Mr and Mrs Philip Gibbs
Thomas Gibson
Mrs Angela Gilchrist
Mrs Tina S Grol
Mr Charles Hallatt
Mrs Julia Hands
The David and Claudia Harding Foundation
The Michael Heathcoat Amory Charitable Trust
Robin and Philippa Herbert
Mr and Mrs Anthony Hoare
Will Hobhouse
Mrs Jon Hunt
The Countess of Inchcape
Sir Henry and Lady Keswick
The Hon Mrs Julia Kirkham
Sarah Kowitz
Mr Michael Le Poer Trench
Mr and Mrs Matthew Lindsey-Clark
Roni Lovegrove

Mike Lucy
James and Béatrice Lupton
Lord and Lady Magan of Castletown
John Manser
Julian and Camilla Mash
Liz and Luke Mayhew
Mrs Usha Mittal
Jon and Patricia Moynihan
Mr and Mrs Sandy Muirhead
Mr and Mrs Peter Nutting
Richard and Amicia Oldfield
Roslyn Packer
Mrs Gregory Palm
Lorna Parker and Christopher Bown
Mr Terence Pentony
The Lord Phillimore
Mr and Mrs Rupert Ponsonby
Mrs Geraldine Prosser
Sir Simon and Lady Robertson
Mr and Mrs Stuart Roden
Dame Theresa Sackler
Bryan K Sanderson, CBE
Adrian Sassoon
Gaie Scouller
Sir Colin Southgate
Colin Spires
Mr and Mrs Nicholas Stanley
Lady Stevenson
Mrs Elizabeth Storey
Mr Bernard Taylor
Mrs Sarah Taylor
Alan and Alison Titchmarsh
Lindsay Tomlinson
Mrs Carolyn Townsend
The Hon Mrs Townshend
Sarah Van Haefton
Ms Johanna Waterous, CBE
Mrs Giles Weaver
Mr Simon Weil
Mr and Mrs Hellmuth Weisser
Mrs Mary Weston
Mr Mark White
Willis Lease Finance Corporation
Toby and Regina Wyles Charitable Trust
Mr David Zalaznick

We would like to thank all donors that have supported the RHS, including those that wish to remain
anonymous.
If you would like to support the work of the RHS, please contact Ruth Evans
(ruthevans@rhs.org.uk), the Director of Education, Funding and Communities, at 80 Vincent
Square, London SW1P 2PE or telephone 020 7821 3081
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Governance Boards and Committees
Audit and Risk Committee (reporting to Council)
Mr Alastair Muirhead (Chairman from June 2015)
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Dame Mary Keegan
Mr Neil Lucas
Sir Anthony May
Mr Mark Porter
Mr Philip Rego
Mr John Ward
Commercial Board (reporting to Council)
Mr Alastair Muirhead (Chairman)
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Mr Christopher Blundell
Mr David Domoney
Mr Dennis Espley
Mr Mark Fane
Mr Matthew Lindsey-Clark
Mrs Avril Martindale (from April 2015)
Mr David Morrison
Mr Mark Porter
Ms Johanna Waterous
Mrs Ruth Wilmott
Mrs Margaret Young (from April 2015)
Council Strategic Investment Programme Group (established July 2014; reporting to Council)
Sir Nicholas Bacon (Chairman)
Mr Mark Fane
Mr David Haselgrove
Mr David Morrison
Mr Alastair Muirhead
Ms Lorna Parker (from May 2015)
Horticulture Board (reporting to Council)
Sir Nicholas Bacon (Chairman)
Mr James Alexander-Sinclair
Mr George Anderson
Mrs Elizabeth Banks
Mr Nick Dunn
Mr Mark Flanagan
Prof. Peter Gregory
Dr Christopher Grey-Wilson
Mr David Haselgrove
Mr Johan Hermans
Mr Neil Lucas (from Jan 2015)
Mrs Jekka McVicar (to June 2015)
Mr Alastair Muirhead
Mr Jan Pennings
Mr Greg Redwood
Mrs Prunella Scarlett
Mr Jon Wheatley (from Jan 2015)
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Investments Committee (reporting to Commercial Board)
Mr Mark Fane (Chairman)
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Mr Rupert Caldecott
Mr Alastair Muirhead
Mr Ross Reason (to June 2015)
Nominations, Appointments and Governance Committee (reporting to Council)
Ms Lorna Parker (Chairwoman from June 2015)
Mr David Morrison (Chairman to June 2015)
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Mr Michael Balston
Mr Dennis Espley (from June 2015)
Mr David Haselgrove (to March 2015)
Ms Kate Lampard
Mr Neil Lucas
Mr Alastair Muirhead
Mr David Rae (from June 2015)
Pensions & Remuneration Committee (reporting to Council)
Mr Alastair Muirhead (Chairman)
Sir Nicholas Bacon
Mr Christopher Blundell
Mr Keith Cameron
Mr Dennis Espley
Mrs Katherine Thomas
Ms Carol Ward
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Professional Advisors
Auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
Melton Street
Euston Square
London NW1 2EP
Solicitors
Stone King LLP
Boundary House
91 Charterhouse Street
London EC1M 6HR
Bankers
National Westminster Bank plc
169 Victoria Street
London SW1E 5NB
Investment Fund Managers
CCLA Investment Management Limited
Senator House
85 Queen Victoria Street
London EC4V 4ET
Troy Asset Management
Brookfield House
44 Davies Street
London W1K 5JA
Royal London Asset Management
55 Gracechurch Street
London EC3V 0UF
Veritas Asset Management LLP
90 Long Acre
Covent Garden
London WC2E 9RA
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